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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the transition period to

Commission file number: 000-50644

Cutera, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware 77-0492262
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

3240 Bayshore Blvd., Brisbane, California 94005

(Address of principal executive offices)

(415) 657-5500

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90

days. Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files). Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer ~ Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act.):  Yes No

The number of shares of Registrant’s common stock issued and outstanding as of October 31, 2014 was 14,395,948.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CUTERA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable investments

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Deferred tax asset

Other current assets and prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Deferred tax asset, net of current portion
Intangibles, net

Goodwill

Other long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

September
30,

2014

$11,377
69,321
8,736
11,106
29
1,947
102,516

1,301
316
1,438
1,339
13
$106,923

$2,718

December
31,

2013

$16,242
66,831
9,679
9,006
31
1,507
103,296

1,362
329
2,019
1,339
324

$ 108,669

$1,820
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Accrued liabilities 8,975 9,328
Deferred revenue 8,745 7,494
Total current liabilities 20,438 18,642
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 4,596 4,340
Income tax liability 151 108
Other long-term liabilities 1,029 1,314
Total liabilities 26,214 24,404

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders’ equity:

Convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; authorized: 5,000,000 shares; none issued
and outstanding

Common stock, $0.001 par value; authorized: 50,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding:

14,393,801 and 13,931,833 shares at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 14 14
respectively

Additional paid-in capital 104,284 98,820
Accumulated deficit (23,607 ) (14,620 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income 18 51

Total stockholders’ equity 80,709 84,265
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $106,923 $108,669

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CUTERA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

Three Months Nine Months

Ended Ended

September 30, September 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Net revenue:

Products $14,409 $12,480 $39,332 $39,056
Service 4,317 4,348 13,307 13,299
Total net revenue 18,726 16,828 52,639 52,355
Cost of revenue:

Products 5,877 5,490 16,871 17,063
Service 2,058 2,161 6,215 6,447
Total cost of revenue 7,935 7,651 23,086 23,510
Gross profit 10,791 9,177 29,553 28,845
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 7,805 6,554 22,890 20,180
Research and development 2,628 2,440 7,894 6,778
General and administrative 2,897 2,160 7,796 6,803
Total operating expenses 13,330 11,154 38,580 33,761
Loss from operations (2,539) (1,977) (9,027) (4916)
Interest and other income, net — 140 218 350
Loss before income taxes (2,539) (1,837) (8,809) (4,566)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 97 (169 ) 178 97 )
Net loss $(2,636) $(1,668) $(8,987) $(4,469)

Net loss per share:
Basic and Diluted $(0.18 ) $(0.11 ) $(0.63 ) $(0.31 )

Weighted-average number of shares used in per share calculations:
Basic and Diluted 14,334 14,541 14,197 14,558



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CUTERA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net loss $(2,636) $(1,668) $(8,987) $(4,469)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Available-for-sale investments
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments 57 ) 94 29 ) 27 )
Eleesiéslleclgss1flc§t1on adjustment for gains on investments recognized during 3 ) © ) ) © )
pective periods

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments 60 ) 85 B33 ) B6 )
Tax benefit 10 — — —

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 50 ) 85 33 ) B6 )
Comprehensive loss $(2,686) $(1,583) $(9,020) $(4,505)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CUTERA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Stock-based compensation

Depreciation and amortization

Other

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets and prepaid expenses
Other long-term assets

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred revenue

Income tax liability

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property, equipment and software
Proceeds from sales of marketable investments
Proceeds from maturities of marketable investments
Purchase of marketable investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase plan
Payments on capital lease obligations

2,298
989
222

845
(2,100
(181
311
898
(385
(214
1,507
43
(4,754

(390
11,501
22,260

)
)

)
)

)

)

(36,539)

(3,168

3,166
(109

)

)

Nine Months
Ended September
30,
2014 2013

$(8,987 ) $(4,469 )

2,370
973
43

1,347
693
212
49
(7 )
(1,877 )
(163 )
1,870
(343 )
698

(493 )
12,108
26,315
(43,901)
(5,971 )

(7,623 )
4,600
90 )

10
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Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3,057 (3,113 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,865 ) (8,386 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 16,242 23,546
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $11,377 $15,160

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CUTERA, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Operations and Principles of Consolidation

Cutera®, Inc. (“Cutera” or the “Company”) is a global provider of laser and other energy-based aesthetic systems for
practitioners worldwide. The Company designs, develops, manufactures, and markets laser and other energy-based
product platforms for use by physicians and other qualified practitioners which enable them to offer safe and effective
aesthetic treatments to their customers. The Company currently markets the following key product platforms:
CoolGlide®, Xeo®, Solera®, GenesisPlus™, Excel V™™, truSculpt™, Excel HR™ and enLIGHTen™. The Company’s product
offer multiple hand pieces and applications, which allow customers to upgrade their systems. The sales of systems,
upgrades, hand pieces, hand piece refills (Titan® and truSculpt) and the distribution of third party manufactured
dermal fillers and cosmeceuticals are classified as “Product” revenue. In the second quarter of 2014, the Company
terminated its agreement with Merz Pharma GmbH (“Merz”) for the distribution of its Radiesse® dermal filler
product. In addition to Product revenue, the Company generates revenue from the sale of post-warranty service
contracts, parts, detachable hand piece replacements (except for Titan and truSculpt) and service labor for the repair
and maintenance of products that are out of warranty, all of which is classified as “Service revenue.”

Headquartered in Brisbane, California, the Company has wholly-owned subsidiaries that are currently operational in
Australia, Belgium, Canada, France, Japan, Switzerland and Hong Kong, that market, sell and service its products
outside of the United States. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries. All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Unaudited Interim Financial Information

The interim financial information filed is unaudited. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in
this report reflect all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that the Company considers
necessary for the fair statement of the results of operations for the interim periods covered and of the financial
condition of the Company at the date of the interim balance sheet. The December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The results for interim periods
are not necessarily indicative of the results for the entire year or any other interim period. The Condensed

12
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Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s previously filed audited financial
statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2013 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 18, 2014.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially
from those estimates. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates these estimates, including those related to revenue
elements, warranty obligations, sales commissions, accounts receivable and sales allowances, provision for excess and
obsolete inventories, fair values of marketable investments, fair values of acquired intangible assets, useful lives of
intangible assets and property and equipment, fair values of performance stock units and options to purchase the
Company’s stock, recoverability of deferred tax assets, and effective income tax rates, among others. Management
bases these estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accountings Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, or ASU 2014-09, which requires an entity to recognize the amount
of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The standard
will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective and shall take
effective on January 1, 2017. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition
method and the early application of the standard is not permitted. The Company is presently evaluating the effect that
ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures and has not yet selected a
transition method.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties About an
Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. This standard update provides guidance around management's
responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide related footnote disclosures. The new guidance is effective for all annual and interim periods ending after
December 15, 2016. The new guidance will not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Investments

13



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

The Company invests its cash primarily in money market funds, commercial paper, corporate notes and bonds,
municipal bonds, and debt securities issued by the U.S. government and its agencies. The Company considers all
highly liquid investments, with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase, to be cash
equivalents. Investments with maturities of greater than three months at the time of purchase are accounted for as
“available-for-sale,” are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of stockholders’
equity, held for use in current operations and classified in current assets as “marketable investments.”

14
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The following tables summarize the components, and the unrealized gains and losses position, related to the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents and marketable investments (in thousands):

Amortized Gross Gross Fair
September 30, 2014 Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 4224 $ — $ — $4,224
Money market funds 4,653 — — 4,653
Commercial paper 2,500 — — 2,500
Total cash and cash equivalents 11,377 — — 11,377
Marketable investments:
U.S. government notes 18,340 19 — 18,359
U.S. government agencies 19,845 31 9 ) 19,867
Municipal securities 3,833 3 3 ) 3,833
Commercial paper 8,440 4 — 8,444
Corporate debt securities 18,795 32 9 ) 18,818
Total marketable investments 69,253 89 (21 ) 69,321
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable investments $ 80,630 $ 89 $ (2l ) $80,698
Amortized Gross Gross Fair
December 31, 2013 Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 3,816 $ — $ — $3,816
Money market funds 9,926 — — 9,926
Commercial paper 2,500 — — 2,500
Total cash and cash equivalents 16,242 — — 16,242
Marketable investments:
U.S. government notes 10,516 11 ®) ) 10,522
U.S. government agencies 25,823 38 3 ) 25,858
Municipal securities 2,043 1 ®) ) 2,039
Commercial paper 10,239 3 — 10,242
Corporate debt securities 18,109 61 — 18,170
Total marketable investments 66,730 114 (13 ) 66,831
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable investments $ 82,972 $ 114 $ (13 ) $83,073

As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, total gross unrealized losses were $21,000 and $13,000,
respectively, and were related to interest rate changes on available-for-sale marketable investments. The Company has

15
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concluded that it is more-likely-than-not that the securities will be held until maturity or the recovery of their cost
basis. No securities were in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months.

The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Company’s available-for-sale securities, classified as
marketable investments as of September 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Amount
Due in less than one year $29,091
Due in 1 to 3 years 40,230
$69,321

16
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Note 3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between (1)
market participant assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable
inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad
levels, which gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are
described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable inputs as of the reporting date through correlation with market data,
including quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and quoted prices in markets that are not
active. Level 2 also includes assets and liabilities that are valued using models or other pricing methodologies that do
not require significant judgment since the input assumptions used in the models, such as interest rates and volatility
factors, are corroborated by readily observable data from actively quoted markets for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and reflect the use of significant
management judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing models for which the assumptions
utilize management’s estimates of market participant assumptions.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its
assessment of fair value.

As of September 30, 2014, financial assets measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis and classified
under the appropriate level of the fair value hierarchy as described above were as follows (in thousands):

Level Level

September 30, 2014 1 Level 2 3 Total
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $4,653 $— $ — $4,653
Commercial paper — 2,500 — 2,500
Marketable investments:

Available-for-sale securities — 69,321 — 69,321

Total assets at fair value $4,653 $71,821 $§ — $76,474

17
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As of December 31, 2013, financial assets measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis and classified
under the appropriate level of the fair value hierarchy as described above was as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 %evel Level 2 ;Jevel Total
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $9,926 $— $ — $9.,926
Commercial paper — 2,500 — 2,500
Marketable investments:

Available-for-sale securities — 66,831 — 66,831

Total assets at fair value $9,926 $69,331 $ — $79,257

The Company’s Level 2 investments include U.S. government-backed securities and corporate securities that are
valued based upon observable inputs that may include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer
spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data including market research
publications. The average remaining maturity of the Company’s Level 2 investments as of September 30, 2014 is less
than 36 months and all of these investments are rated by S&P and Moody’s at A- or better.

$ Change % Change (millions)

Net Revenues:

Wholesale

$2,758.1 $2,3159 $442.2 19.1 %
Retail

1,912.6 1,743.2 169.4 97 %
Licensing

209.4 236.3 269) (114)%
Total net revenues
$4,880.1 $4,2954 $584.7 13.6 %

Wholesale net revenues The net increase primarily reflects:

the inclusion of $254 million of revenues from the newly acquired Impact 21 and Small Leathergoods
businesses, net of intercompany eliminations;

an approximate $47 million increase in our European businesses on a constant currency basis driven by
increased sales in our menswear and womenswear product lines;

an aggregate $81 million net increase in our U.S. businesses. The net increase was primarily due to the initial
shipments of the American Living product line to JCPenney; an increase in our menswear shipments; a net
increase in womenswear, primarily driven by Chaps, partially offset by increased promotional activity; and an
increase in footwear attributable to increased door penetration. Offsetting these increases were a decline in our
childrenswear product lines due to weaker sales at department stores and increased promotional activity; and a
planned reduction in our off-price channel denim business; and

18
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a $60 million increase in revenues due to a favorable foreign currency effect, primarily related to the continued

strengthening of the Euro in comparison to the U.S. dollar in Fiscal 2008.

Retail net revenues  The increase primarily reflects:

a $87 million aggregate net increase in comparable full-price and factory store sales on a global basis,
including a net aggregate favorable $22 million foreign currency effect. This net increase was driven by

increases in comparable store sales as provided below:

Increases in comparable store sales as reported:
Full-price Ralph Lauren store sales

Full-price Club Monaco store sales

Factory store sales

Total increase in comparable store sales as reported

Increases in comparable store sales excluding the effect of foreign currency:
Full-price Ralph Lauren store sales

Full-price Club Monaco store sales

Factory store sales

Total increase in comparable store sales excluding the effect of foreign currency

46

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29,
2008

6.6%
5.7%
5.5%
5.8%

4.3%
5.7%
4.2%
4.3%

19
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a $52 million aggregate net increase in sales from non-comparable stores, primarily relating to new store
openings within the past fiscal year. There was a net increase in average global store count of 9 stores, to a total
of 313 stores, compared to the prior fiscal year. The net increase in store count was primarily due to several
new domestic and international full-price and factory store openings; and

a $30 million, or 26.4%, increase in sales at RalphLauren.com.
Licensing revenue The net decrease primarily reflects:

a $26 million net decrease in international licensing royalties, primarily due to the loss of licensing revenues
from Impact 21, which is now consolidated as part of the Wholesale segment; and

a $1 million net decrease in domestic licensing royalties, primarily due to the absence of approximately

$8 million of minimum royalty and design-service fees received in connection with the termination of a
licensing arrangement in the prior fiscal year. The net decrease was partially offset by an increase in
eyewear-related royalties as a result of the licensing agreement entered into with Luxottica Group, S.p.A. and
affiliates, which took effect on January 1, 2007.

Gross Profit. Cost of goods sold includes the expenses incurred to acquire and produce inventory for sale, including
product costs, freight-in, and import costs, as well as changes in reserves for shrinkage and inventory realizability. The
costs of selling merchandise, including those associated with preparing the merchandise for sale, such as picking,
packing, warehousing and order charges, are included in SG&A expenses.

Gross profit increased by $301.9 million, or 12.9%, to $2.638 billion in Fiscal 2008 from $2.336 billion in Fiscal
2007. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues decreased by 30 basis points to 54.1% in Fiscal 2008 from 54.4% in
Fiscal 2007, primarily due to the dilutive effect of our recent acquisitions. Excluding the effect of acquisitions, gross
profit increased by $208.6 million, or 8.9%, and gross profit as a percentage of net revenues increased 10 basis points
compared to Fiscal 2007. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of net revenues was due to improved
performance in our European wholesale operations which generally carry higher margins, offset in part by increased
domestic promotional activity as well as a slight change in the overall relative sales mix between the Wholesale
segment and the higher margin Retail and Licensing segments.

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues is dependent upon a variety of factors, including changes in the relative
sales mix among distribution channels, changes in the mix of products sold, the timing and level of promotional
activities, foreign currency exchange rates, and fluctuations in material costs. These factors, among others, may cause
gross profit as a percentage of net revenues to fluctuate from year to year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A expenses primarily include compensation and benefits,
marketing, distribution, bad debts, information technology, facilities, legal and other costs associated with finance and
administration. SG&A expenses increased by $269.1 million, or 16.2%, to $1.932 billion in Fiscal 2008 from

$1.663 billion in Fiscal 2007. The increase included approximately $36 million of unfavorable foreign currency
effects, primarily related to the continued strengthening of the Euro in comparison to the U.S. dollar during Fiscal
2008. SG&A expenses as a percent of net revenues increased to 39.6% in Fiscal 2008 from 38.7% in Fiscal 2007. The
net 90 basis point increase was primarily associated with operating expenses at the Company s newly acquired
businesses and certain start-up costs related to new business launches. The $269.1 million increase in SG&A expenses
was primarily driven by:

the inclusion of SG&A costs of approximately $91 million for our newly acquired Impact 21 and Small
Leathergoods businesses, including costs incurred pursuant to transition service arrangements;
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higher stock-based compensation expense of approximately $27 million primarily due to an increase in the
Company s share price as of the date of its annual equity award grant in the second quarter of Fiscal 2008
compared to the share price as of the comparable grant date in Fiscal 2007;

higher compensation-related expenses (excluding stock-based compensation) of approximately $56 million,
principally relating to increased selling costs associated with higher retail and wholesale sales and our ongoing
product line expansion, including American Living and a dedicated dress business across multiple brands, as
well as severance-related costs;

47
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an approximate $39 million increase in rent and utility costs to support the ongoing global growth of our
businesses, including rent expense related to certain retail stores scheduled to open in Fiscal 2009; and

an approximate $25 million increase in depreciation expense primarily associated with global retail store
expansion, construction and renovation of department store shop-within-shops and investments in our facilities
and technological infrastructure.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased by $31.6 million, to $47.2 million in
Fiscal 2008 from $15.6 million in Fiscal 2007. The net increase was primarily due to the amortization of intangible
assets acquired in connection with the Company s recent acquisitions. See Note 5 to the accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the acquisitions.

Impairments of Assets. A non-cash impairment charge of $5.0 million was recognized in Fiscal 2008 to reduce the
carrying value of certain long-lived assets in the Company s Retail segment to their estimated fair value. The
impairment was primarily attributable to lower-than-expected operating cash flow performance in certain stores. No
impairment charges were recognized in Fiscal 2007. See Note 11 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

Restructuring Charges. Restructuring charges of $4.6 million were recognized in Fiscal 2007 primarily associated
with the Club Monaco retail business. No significant restructuring charges were recognized in Fiscal 2008. See
Note 12 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Operating Income. Operating income increased slightly by $0.8 million, or 0.1%, to $653.4 million in Fiscal 2008
from $652.6 million in Fiscal 2007. Operating income as a percentage of revenue decreased 180 basis points, to
13.4% in Fiscal 2008 from 15.2% in Fiscal 2007, primarily due to the effect of purchase accounting relating to the
acquisitions. Excluding the effect of acquisitions, operating income increased by $43.0 million, or 6.6%, while
operating income as a percentage of net revenues decreased 30 basis points in Fiscal 2008. The decrease in operating
income as a percentage of net revenues primarily reflected the increase in SG&A expenses due to business expansion,
partially offset by an increase in gross profit margin as previously discussed.

Operating income as reported for our three business segments is provided below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007 $ Change % Change
(millions)
Operating Income:
Wholesale $ 5654 $ 4778 $ 87.6 183 %
Retail 204.2 224.2 (20.0) (8.9) %
Licensing 96.7 141.6 (44.9) (31.7) %
866.3 843.6 22.7 2.7 %
Less:
Unallocated corporate expenses (217.0) (183.4) (33.6) 183 %
Unallocated legal and restructuring charges 4.1 (7.6) 11.7 (153.9) %
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Total operating income $ 6534 $ 6526 $ 0.8 0.1 %

Wholesale operating income increased by $87.6 million, including the favorable effects from the Japanese Business
and Small Leathergoods Business Acquisitions. Excluding the effects of these acquisitions, Wholesale operating
income increased by $61.4 million primarily as a result of increased net sales, including shipments of American
Living, and improved gross margin primarily in our European wholesale operations, offset in part by increased
domestic promotional activity in certain product categories. The increase was partially offset by higher net SG&A
expenses in support of our new product lines.

Retail operating income decreased by $20.0 million, including the unfavorable effects from purchase accounting
related to the RL Media Minority Interest Acquisition. Excluding the effects of the acquisition, Retail operating
income decreased by $9.0 million primarily as a result of increased markdown activity, a non-cash
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impairment charge of $5.0 million, and an increase in occupancy and other operating costs principally related to
worldwide store expansion, as we continue to develop and invest in our existing retail concepts and formats. The
decrease also reflected an increase in selling-related salaries and associated costs, as well as increased fulfillment costs
associated with higher sales at RalphLauren.com.

Licensing operating income decreased by $44.9 million, including the unfavorable effects from the Japanese Business
and Small Leathergoods Business Acquisitions. Excluding the effects of these acquisitions, Licensing operating
income increased by $12.5 million primarily due to an increase in eyewear-related royalties. This increase was
partially offset by the absence of approximately $8 million of minimum royalty and design-service fees received in
connection with the termination of a licensing arrangement in the prior fiscal year.

Unallocated corporate expenses increased by $33.6 million, primarily as a result of increases in brand-related
marketing costs, including costs associated with various events related to the Company s 40th anniversary, and
compensation-related and facilities costs to support the ongoing growth of our businesses. The increase in
compensation-related costs includes higher stock-based compensation expense and severance-related costs, as
previously discussed under SG&A expenses.

Unallocated legal and restructuring charges were comprised of a reversal of an excess reserve in the amount of

$4.1 million in Fiscal 2008 related to the Credit Card Matter (as discussed in Note 16 to the accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements). Unallocated legal and restructuring charges were $7.6 million in Fiscal 2007 and
were principally associated with the Club Monaco Restructuring Plan charges of $4.0 million (as defined in Note 12 to
the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements) and costs of $3.0 million related to the Credit Card
Matter.

Foreign Currency Gains (Losses). The effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations resulted in a loss of

$6.4 million in Fiscal 2008, compared to a loss of $1.5 million in Fiscal 2007. Foreign currency losses increased
compared to the prior fiscal year primarily due to a $2.0 million write-off of foreign currency option contracts, entered
into to manage certain foreign currency exposures associated with the Japanese Business Acquisitions, most of which
expired unexercised as of March 29, 2008, hedge activity associated with the return of capital from a foreign
subsidiary and intercompany royalty activity, as well as the timing of the settlement of third party and intercompany
receivables and payables (that were not of a long-term investment nature). Foreign currency gains and losses are
unrelated to the impact of changes in the value of the U.S. dollar when operating results of our foreign subsidiaries are
translated to U.S. dollars.

Interest Expense. Interest expense includes the borrowing costs of our outstanding debt, including amortization of
debt issuance costs, and interest related to our capital lease obligations. Interest expense increased by $4.1 million to
$25.7 million in Fiscal 2008 from $21.6 million in Fiscal 2007. The increase is primarily due to additional borrowings
undertaken during the first quarter of Fiscal 2008 in connection with the Japanese Business Acquisitions (see
Financial Condition and Liquidity —Debt and Covenant Compliance for further discussion), as well as the higher
principal amount of our outstanding Euro denominated debt. This increase was partially offset by the absence of
overlapping interest on debt during the period between the issuance of approximately 300 million principal amount of
4.5% notes due October 4, 2013 (the Euro Debt ) and the repayment of approximate 227 million principal amount of
6.125% notes outstanding that were due on November 22, 2006, from an original issuance of 275 million in 1999 (the
1999 Euro Debt ), in the prior fiscal year.

Interest and Other Income, net. Interest and other income, net, decreased by $1.4 million, to $24.7 million in Fiscal

2008 from $26.1 million in Fiscal 2007. This decrease was principally driven by lower average interest rates, lower
balances on our invested excess cash and higher transaction-related costs.
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Equity in Income (Loss) of Equity-Method Investees. The equity in loss of equity-method investees of $1.8 million in
Fiscal 2008 related to certain start-up costs associated with the recently formed joint venture, RL Watch Company,
which the Company accounts for under the equity method of accounting. The equity in income of equity-method
investees of $3.0 million in Fiscal 2007 related to Impact 21, which was previously accounted for as an equity-method
investment. The results of operations for Impact 21 have been consolidated in the Company s results of operations
commencing April 1, 2007. Accordingly, no equity income related to Impact 21 was recorded in Fiscal 2008. See
Note 5 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the Company s Impact
21 Acquisition.
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Minority Interest Expense. Minority interest expense decreased by $13.2 million, to $2.1 million in Fiscal 2008 from
$15.3 million in Fiscal 2007. The decrease is related to the Company s acquisition of the remaining 50% interests in
RL Media and PRL Japan. This decrease was partially offset by an increase related to the allocation of Impact 21 s net
income to the holders of the approximate 80% interest not owned by the Company prior to the closing date of the
related tender offer and to the holders of the remaining approximate 3% interest not owned by the Company as of the
end of Fiscal 2008. See Note 5 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion of
the Company s acquisitions.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes represents federal, foreign, state and local income taxes.
The provision for income taxes decreased by $20.1 million, or 8.3%, to $222.3 million in Fiscal 2008 from

$242.4 million in Fiscal 2007. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in our reported effective tax rate of

310 basis points, to 34.6% in Fiscal 2008 from 37.7% in Fiscal 2007, and a decrease in pretax income in Fiscal 2008
compared to Fiscal 2007. The lower effective tax rate is primarily due to tax reserve reductions associated with an
audit settlement and the expiration of a statute of limitations, lower state income taxes as well as a change in the
geographic mix of earnings, partially offset by certain higher, non-deductible expenses under § 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The effective tax rate differs from statutory rates due to the effect of state and local taxes, tax rates in
foreign jurisdictions and certain nondeductible expenses. Our effective tax rate will change from year to year based on
non-recurring factors including, but not limited to, the geographic mix of earnings, the timing and amount of foreign
dividends, enacted tax legislation, state and local taxes, tax audit findings and settlements, and the interaction of
various global tax strategies. See Note 13 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for a
discussion of the Company s adoption of FIN 48 as of the beginning of Fiscal 2008.

Net Income. Net income increased by $18.9 million, or 4.7%, to $419.8 million in Fiscal 2008 from $400.9 million in
Fiscal 2007. The increase in net income principally related to the $20.1 million decrease in provision for income taxes
discussed above and the $0.8 million increase in operating income. The increase was partially offset by reductions in
operating income primarily related to the dilutive effect of purchase accounting, an increase in domestic promotional
activity and higher SG&A expenses principally associated with our recent acquisitions. The net dilutive effect related
to the Company s recent acquisitions included approximately $53 million of non-cash amortization of intangible assets
and inventory. See Note 5 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the
Company s acquisitions.

Net Income Per Diluted Share. Net income per diluted share increased by $0.26, or 7.0%, to $3.99 per share in Fiscal
2008 from $3.73 per share in Fiscal 2007. The increase in diluted per share results was primarily due to the higher
level of net income and lower weighted-average diluted shares outstanding for Fiscal 2008 compared to the prior
fiscal year.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Financial Condition

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008 $ Change
(millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4812 $ 551.5 $ (70.3)
Short-term investments 338.7 74.3 264.4
Current maturities of debt (206.4) 206.4
Long-term debt (406.4) 472.8) 66.4
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Net cash and short-term investments (net debt)® $ 4135 $ (534) $ 466.9

Stockholders equity $ 2,735.1 $ 2,380.7 $ 3454

@  Net cash and short-term investments is defined as total cash and cash equivalents, plus short-term investments

less total debt. Net debt is defined as total debt less total cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.
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The increase to the Company s net cash and short-term investments position as of March 28, 2009 as compared to a net
debt position as of March 29, 2008 was primarily due to growth in operating cash flows, partially offset by the
Company s use of cash to support its treasury stock repurchases, capital expenditures and acquisition spending. In
Fiscal 2009, the Company used $169.8 million to repurchase 2.5 million shares of Class A common stock and spent
$185.0 million for capital expenditures. The Company also used approximately $26.0 million to fund its recent
Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition. In addition, the Company repaid its current maturities of debt using
available cash on-hand in May 2008.

The increase in the Company s short-term investments was primarily due to the investment of excess cash in time
deposits with maturities greater than 90 days.

The increase in stockholders equity was primarily due to the Company s net income in Fiscal 2009, offset in part by an
increase in treasury stock as a result of the Company s common stock repurchase program.

Cash Flows

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29,
2009 2008 $ Change
(millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 7742 $ 695.4 $ 78.8
Net cash used in investing activities (458.0) (505.0) 47.0
Net cash used in financing activities (352.1) (260.5) (91.6)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (34.4) 57.7 (92.1)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (70.3) $ (12.4) $ (57.9)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities increased to $774.2 million in
Fiscal 2009, compared to $695.4 million in Fiscal 2008. This net increase in operating cash flow was primarily driven
by:

an increase in net income before depreciation, amortization, non-cash asset impairment charges, stock-based
compensation and other non-cash expenses; and

an approximate $84 million decrease in cash tax payments.
The above increases were partially offset by:

an increase in inventory primarily due to the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition, offset in part by the
effects of ongoing inventory management across most businesses.

Other than the items described above, the changes in operating assets and liabilities were attributable to normal
operating fluctuations.
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Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $458.0 million in Fiscal 2009, as
compared to $505.0 million in Fiscal 2008. The net decrease in cash used in investing activities was primarily driven
by:

a decrease in net cash used to fund the Company s acquisitions. In Fiscal 2009, the Company used $46.3 million
primarily to fund the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition and to complete the minority squeeze-out
related to the Japanese Business Acquisitions. On a comparative basis, in Fiscal 2008, the Company used

$188.7 million principally to fund the Japanese Business Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and the Small
Leathergoods Business Acquisition;

a decrease in cash used in connection with capital expenditures. In Fiscal 2009, the Company spent
$185.0 million for capital expenditures, as compared to $217.1 million in Fiscal 2008. The Company s capital

expenditures were primarily associated with global retail store expansion, construction and
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renovation of department store shop-within-shops and investments in its facilities and technological
infrastructure; and

a change in restricted cash deposits. In Fiscal 2009, net restricted cash of $26.9 million was released primarily
in connection with the partial settlement of certain international tax matters. On a comparative basis, Fiscal
2008 included net restricted cash deposits of $15.1 million.

The above decreases were partially offset by:

an increase in cash used to purchase investments, less proceeds from sales and maturities of investments. In
Fiscal 2009, the Company used $623.1 million to purchase investments, less $369.5 million of proceeds from
sales and maturities of investments. On a comparative basis, in Fiscal 2008, $96.8 million was used to purchase
investments, less $12.7 million of proceeds from sales and maturities of investments.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $352.1 million in Fiscal 2009, as
compared to $260.5 million in Fiscal 2008. The increase in net cash used in financing activities was primarily driven
by:

the repayment of ¥20.5 billion ($196.8 million as of the repayment date) of borrowings under a one-year term
loan agreement pursuant to an amendment and restatement to the Company s existing credit facility (the Term
Loan ) in Fiscal 2009 related to the Japanese Business Acquisitions. On a comparative basis, Fiscal 2008
included the receipt of proceeds from the Term Loan of $168.9 million as of the borrowing date; and

a decrease in excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements of $22.3 million in Fiscal 2009
as compared to the prior fiscal year.

The above increases were partially offset by:

a decrease in repurchases of the Company s Class A common stock pursuant to the Company s common stock
repurchase program. Approximately 2.5 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $169.8 million
(including approximately 0.4 million shares at a cost of $24.0 million that was traded prior to the end of Fiscal
2008 for which settlement occurred in April 2008) were repurchased in Fiscal 2009, as compared to
approximately 6.0 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $475.4 million in Fiscal 2008.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007 $ Change
(millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6954 $ 796.1 $ (100.7)
Net cash used in investing activities (505.0) (434.6) (70.4)
Net cash used in financing activities (260.5) (95.2) (165.3)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 57.7 11.9 45.8
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 124) % 278.2 $  (290.6)
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Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities decreased to $695.4 million in
Fiscal 2008, compared to $796.1 million in Fiscal 2007. This $100.7 million net decrease in operating cash flow was
primarily driven by:

the absence of the approximately $180 million, net of certain tax withholdings, received under an eyewear
licensing agreement in the prior fiscal year; and

an increase in other receivables primarily attributable to the timing of estimated tax payments.
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The above decreases were partially offset by:
an increase in net income before non-cash depreciation, amortization and stock-based compensation expenses;
improved accounts receivable cash collections in the Company s Wholesale segment; and

the effects of ongoing inventory management, which resulted in lower average balance and increased inventory
turns across certain businesses.

Other than the items described above, the changes in operating assets and liabilities were attributable to normal
operating fluctuations.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $505.0 million in Fiscal 2008, as
compared to $434.6 million in Fiscal 2007. The net increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily driven
by:

an increase in net cash used to fund the Company s acquisitions. In Fiscal 2008, the Company used

$188.7 million principally to fund the Japanese Business Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and the Small
Leathergoods Business Acquisition; whereas in Fiscal 2007, $176.1 million was used primarily to fund the RL
Media Minority Interest Acquisition;

an increase in cash used in connection with capital expenditures. In Fiscal 2008, the Company spent

$217.1 million for capital expenditures, as compared to $184.0 million in Fiscal 2007. The increase in capital
expenditures is primarily associated with global retail store expansion, construction and renovation of
department store shop-within-shops and investments in our facilities and technological infrastructure, including
showrooms related to our new businesses;

an increase related to purchases of investments of $96.8 million, less proceeds from sales and maturities of
investments of $12.7 million, in Fiscal 2008; and

a partially offsetting decrease in restricted cash deposits. During Fiscal 2008, $15.1 million of cash was
restricted as compared to $74.5 million during Fiscal 2007. Restricted cash was placed in escrow with certain
banks as collateral to secure guarantees of a corresponding amount made by the banks to certain international
tax authorities on behalf of the Company.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $260.5 million in Fiscal 2008, as
compared to $95.2 million in Fiscal 2007. The increase in net cash used in financing activities was primarily driven
by:

increased repurchases of the Company s Class A common stock pursuant to the Company s common stock
repurchase program. Approximately 6.0 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $475.4 million
were repurchased in Fiscal 2008, as compared to approximately 3.5 million shares of Class A common stock at
a cost of $231.3 million in Fiscal 2007; and

a partially offsetting increase in proceeds from issuance of debt. Fiscal 2008 included the receipt of proceeds
from borrowings of ¥20.5 billion ($168.9 million as of the borrowing date) under a one-year term loan
agreement in connection with the Japanese Business Acquisitions. On a comparative basis, Fiscal 2007
included the receipt of proceeds from the issuance of 300 million principal amount ($380.0 million) of Euro
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Debt, offset in part by the repayment of approximately 227 million principal amount ($291.6 million) of 1999
Euro Debt.

Liquidity

The Company s primary sources of liquidity are the cash flow generated from its operations, $450 million of
availability under its credit facility, available cash and cash equivalents, investments and other available financing
options. These sources of liquidity are needed to fund the Company s ongoing cash requirements, including working
capital requirements, global retail store expansion, construction and renovation of shop-within-shops, investment in
technological infrastructure, acquisitions, joint ventures, dividends, debt repayment, stock
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repurchases, contingent liabilities (including uncertain tax positions) and other corporate activities. Notwithstanding
the current global economic crisis, management believes that the Company s existing sources of cash will be sufficient
to support its operating, capital and debt service requirements for the foreseeable future, including the finalization of
acquisitions and plans for business expansion.

As discussed below under the section entitled Debt and Covenant Compliance, the Company had no revolving credit
borrowings outstanding under its credit facility as of March 28, 2009. However, as discussed further below, the
Company may elect to draw on its credit facility or other potential sources of financing for, among other things, a
material acquisition, settlement of a material contingency (including uncertain tax positions) or a material adverse
business development, as well as for other general corporate business purposes. In recognition of the current global
economic crisis, the Company believes its credit facility is adequately diversified with no undue concentrations in any
one financial institution. In particular, as of March 28, 2009, there were 13 financial institutions participating in the
credit facility, with no one participant maintaining a maximum commitment percentage in excess of approximately
20%. Although there can be no assurances, management believes that the participating institutions will be able to
fulfill their obligations to provide financing in accordance with the terms of the credit facility in the event of the
Company s election to draw funds in the foreseeable future.

In May 2007, the Company completed the Japanese Business Acquisitions. These transactions were funded with
available cash on-hand and the ¥20.5 billion Term Loan. The Company repaid the borrowing by its maturity date on
May 22, 2008 using $196.8 million of Impact 21 s cash on-hand acquired as part of the acquisition.

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In May 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved an expansion of the Company s existing common stock
repurchase program that allows the Company to repurchase up to an additional $250 million of Class A common
stock. Repurchases of shares of Class A common stock are subject to overall business and market conditions. In Fiscal
2009, 1.8 million shares of Class A common stock were repurchased by the Company at a cost of $126.2 million
under its repurchase program. Also, during the first quarter of Fiscal 2009, 0.4 million shares traded prior to the end of
Fiscal 2008 were settled at a cost of $24.0 million. The remaining availability under the common stock repurchase
program was approximately $266 million as of March 28, 2009.

In addition, in Fiscal 2009, 0.3 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $19.6 million were surrendered to,
or withheld by, the Company in satisfaction of withholding taxes in connection with the vesting of awards under the
Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.

In Fiscal 2008, share repurchases amounted to 6.1 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $476.4 million,
including $24.0 million (0.4 million shares) that was traded prior to the end of the fiscal year for which settlement
occurred in April 2008. In addition, in Fiscal 2008, 0.3 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of

$23.0 million were surrendered to, or withheld by, the Company in satisfaction of withholding taxes in connection
with the vesting of awards under the Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.

In Fiscal 2007, the Company repurchased 3.5 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $231.3 million.
Dividends
The Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.05 per outstanding share in each quarter of Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008

and Fiscal 2007. The aggregate amount of dividend payments was $19.9 million in Fiscal 2009, $20.5 million in
Fiscal 2008 and $20.9 million in Fiscal 2007.
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The Company intends to continue to pay regular quarterly dividends on its outstanding common stock. However, any
decision to declare and pay dividends in the future will be made at the discretion of the Company s Board of Directors
and will depend on, among other things, the Company s results of operations, cash requirements, financial condition
and other factors that the Board of Directors may deem relevant.
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Debt and Covenant Compliance
Euro Debt

The Company has outstanding approximately 300 million principal amount of 4.5% notes due October 4, 2013. The
Company has the option to redeem all of the Euro Debt at any time at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount plus a premium. The Company also has the option to redeem all of the Euro Debt at any time at par plus
accrued interest in the event of certain developments involving U.S. tax law. Partial redemption of the Euro Debt is
not permitted in either instance. In the event of a change of control of the Company, each holder of the Euro Debt has
the option to require the Company to redeem the Euro Debt at its principal amount plus accrued interest. The
indenture governing the Euro Debt (the Indenture ) contains certain limited covenants that restrict the Company s
ability, subject to specified exceptions, to incur liens or enter into a sale and leaseback transaction for any principal
property. The Indenture does not contain any financial covenants.

As of March 28, 2009, the carrying value of the Euro Debt was $406.4 million, compared to $472.8 million as of
March 29, 2008. The Company may from time to time repurchase all or a portion of its Euro Debt in the open market,
via tender offer or otherwise.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan

The Company has a credit facility that provides for a $450 million unsecured revolving line of credit through

November 2011 (the Credit Facility ). The Credit Facility also is used to support the issuance of letters of credit. As of
March 28, 2009, there were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility, and the Company was contingently
liable for $13.7 million of outstanding letters of credit (primarily relating to inventory purchase commitments). The
Company has the ability to expand its borrowing availability to $600 million subject to the agreement of one or more
new or existing lenders under the facility to increase their commitments. There are no mandatory reductions in
borrowing ability throughout the term of the Credit Facility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company s option, either at (a) a base rate determined by
reference to the higher of (i) the prime commercial lending rate of JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. in effect from time to
time and (ii) the weighted-average overnight Federal funds rate (as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York) plus 50 basis points or (b) a LIBOR rate in effect from time to time, as adjusted for the Federal Reserve Board s
Euro currency liabilities maximum reserve percentage plus a margin defined in the Credit Facility ( the applicable
margin ). The applicable margin of 35 basis points is subject to adjustment based on the Company s credit ratings.

In addition to paying interest on any outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility, the Company is required to pay
a commitment fee to the lenders under the Credit Facility in respect of the unutilized commitments. The commitment
fee rate of 8 basis points under the terms of the Credit Facility also is subject to adjustment based on the Company s
credit ratings.

The Credit Facility contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict the Company s ability, subject to
specified exceptions, to incur additional debt; incur liens and contingent liabilities; sell or dispose of assets, including
equity interests; merge with or acquire other companies; liquidate or dissolve itself; engage in businesses that are not
in a related line of business; make loans, advances or guarantees; engage in transactions with affiliates; and make
investments. The Credit Facility also requires the Company to maintain a maximum ratio of Adjusted Debt to
Consolidated EBITDAR (the leverage ratio ) of no greater than 3.75 as of the date of measurement for four
consecutive quarters. Adjusted Debt is defined generally as consolidated debt outstanding plus 8 times consolidated
rent expense for the last twelve months. EBITDAR is defined generally as consolidated net income plus (i) income tax
expense, (ii) net interest expense, (iii) depreciation and amortization expense and (iv) consolidated rent expense. As of
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March 28, 2009, no Event of Default (as such term is defined pursuant to the Credit Facility) has occurred under the
Company s Credit Facility.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Credit Facility, the lenders may cease making loans, terminate
the Credit Facility, and declare all amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable. The Credit Facility
specifies a number of events of default (many of which are subject to applicable grace periods), including, among
others, the failure to make timely principal and interest payments or to satisfy the covenants, including the
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financial covenant described above. Additionally, the Credit Facility provides that an Event of Default will occur if
Mr. Ralph Lauren, the Company s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and related entities controlled by
Mr. Lauren fail to maintain a specified minimum percentage of the voting power of the Company s common stock.

The Credit Facility was amended and restated as of May 22, 2007 to provide for the addition of the ¥20.5 billion Term
Loan. This loan was made to Polo JP Acqui B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and was guaranteed by
the Company, as well as the other subsidiaries of the Company which currently guarantee the Credit Facility. The
proceeds of the Term Loan were used to finance the Japanese Business Acquisitions. Borrowings under the Term
Loan bore interest at a fixed rate of 1.2%. The Company repaid the borrowing by its maturity date on May 22, 2008
using $196.8 million of Impact 21 s cash on-hand acquired as part of the acquisition. See Recent Developments for
further discussion of the Japanese Business Acquisitions.

Contractual and Other Obligations
Firm Commitments

The following table summarizes certain of the Company s aggregate contractual obligations as of March 28, 2009, and
the estimated timing and effect that such obligations are expected to have on the Company s liquidity and cash flow in
future periods. The Company expects to fund the firm commitments with operating cash flow generated in the normal
course of business and, if necessary, availability under its $450 million credit facility or other potential sources of
financing.

Fiscal
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2015 and
2010 2011-2012  2013-2014  Thereafter Total
(millions)

Euro debt $ $ $ 4064 $ $ 4064
Capital leases 8.3 18.1 18.0 473 91.7
Operating leases 179.9 326.8 294.9 831.0 1,632.6
Inventory purchase commitments 579.3 0.2 579.5
Total $ 7675 § 3451 $ 7193 § 8783 $ 2,710.2

The following is a description of the Company s material, firmly committed contractual obligations as of March 28,
2009:

Euro debt represents the principal amount due at maturity of the Company s outstanding Euro Debt on a
U.S. dollar-equivalent basis. Amounts do not include any fair value adjustments, call premiums or interest
payments;

Lease obligations represent the minimum lease rental payments under noncancelable leases for the Company s
real estate and operating equipment in various locations around the world. Approximately 60% of these lease
obligations relates to the Company s retail operations. Information has been presented separately for operating
and capital leases. In addition to such amounts, the Company is normally required to pay taxes, insurance and
occupancy costs relating to its leased real estate properties; and
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Inventory purchase commitments represent the Company s legally binding agreements to purchase fixed or
minimum quantities of goods at determinable prices.

Excluded from the above contractual obligations table is the non-current liability for unrecognized tax benefits of
$154.8 million recognized pursuant to FIN 48. This liability for unrecognized tax benefits has been excluded because
the Company cannot make a reliable estimate of the period in which the liability will be settled, if ever.

The above table also excludes the following: (i) amounts included in current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet as of March 28, 2009 as these items will be paid within one year; and (ii) non-current liabilities that have no

cash outflows associated with them (e.g., deferred revenue) or the cash outflows associated with them are
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uncertain or do not represent a purchase obligation as the term is used herein (e.g., deferred taxes and other
miscellaneous items).

The Company also has certain contractual arrangements that would require it to make payments if certain
circumstances occur. See Note 16 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for a description of
the Company s contingent commitments not included in the above table.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company s off-balance sheet firm commitments, which include outstanding letters of credit and minimum funding
commitments to investees, amounted to $19.9 million as of March 28, 2009. In addition, as discussed in Recent
Developments, the Company has entered into an agreement to assume direct control of its Polo-branded licensed
apparel business in Southeast Asia effective January 1, 2010 in exchange for a cash payment of $20.0 million and
certain other consideration. The Company does not maintain any other off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions,
obligations or other relationships with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have a material current or
future effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to a variety of risks, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates relating to certain
anticipated cash flows from its international operations and possible declines in the fair value of reported net assets of
certain of its foreign operations, as well as changes in the fair value of its fixed-rate debt relating to changes in interest
rates. Consequently, in the normal course of business the Company employs established policies and procedures,
including the use of derivative financial instruments, to manage such risks. The Company does not enter into
derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

As aresult of the use of derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to the risk that counterparties to derivative
contracts will fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate the counterparty credit risk, the Company has a
policy of only entering into contracts with carefully selected financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and
other financial factors. The Company s established policies and procedures for mitigating credit risk on derivative
transactions include reviewing and assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. As a result of the above
considerations, the Company does not believe it is exposed to any undue concentration of counterparty risk with
respect to its derivative contracts as of March 28, 2009. However, the Company does have approximately 48% of its
derivative instruments in asset positions placed with one creditworthy financial institution.

Foreign Currency Risk Management

The Company manages its exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates through the use of foreign currency
exchange contracts. Refer to Note 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements for a summarization of the
notional amounts and fair values of the Company s foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding as of March 28,
2009.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

From time to time, the Company may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts as hedges to reduce its
risk from exchange rate fluctuations on inventory purchases, intercompany royalty payments made by certain of its
international operations, intercompany contributions made to fund certain marketing efforts of its international
operations, interest payments made in connection with outstanding debt, other foreign currency-denominated
operational obligations including payroll, rent, insurance and benefit payments, and foreign currency-denominated
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revenues. As part of our overall strategy to manage the level of exposure to the risk of foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations, primarily to changes in the value of the Euro, the Japanese Yen, the Swiss Franc, and the British Pound
Sterling, the Company hedges a portion of its foreign currency exposures anticipated over the ensuing twelve-month
to two-year periods. In doing so, the Company uses foreign currency exchange contracts that generally have maturities
of three months to two years to provide continuing coverage throughout the hedging period.
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The Company s foreign exchange risk management activities are governed by policies and procedures approved by its
Audit Committee and Board of Directors. Our policies and procedures provide a framework that allows for the
management of currency exposures while ensuring the activities are conducted within established Company
guidelines. Our policies includes guidelines for the organizational structure of our risk management function and for
internal controls over foreign exchange risk management activities, including but not limited to authorization levels,
transactional limits, and credit quality controls, as well as various measurements for monitoring compliance. We
monitor foreign exchange risk using different techniques including a periodic review of market value and sensitivity
analyses.

The Company records its foreign currency exchange contracts at fair value in its consolidated balance sheets. Foreign
currency exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges at hedge inception are accounted for in accordance with
FAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and subsequent amendments
(collectively, FAS 133 ). As such, to the extent these hedges are effective, the related gains (losses) are deferred in
stockholders equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. These deferred gains (losses) are
then recognized in our consolidated statements of operations as follows:

Forecasted Inventory Purchases Recognized as part of the cost of the inventory being hedged within cost of
goods sold when the related inventory is sold.

Intercompany Royalty Payments and Marketing Contributions Recognized within foreign currency gains
(losses) in the period in which the related royalties or marketing contributions being hedged are received or
paid.

Operational Obligations Recognized primarily within SG&A expenses in the period in which the hedged
forecasted transaction affects earnings.

Interest Payments on Euro Debt Recognized within foreign currency gains (losses) in the period in which the
recorded liability impacts earnings due to foreign currency exchange remeasurement.

The Company recognized net losses on foreign currency exchange contracts in earnings of approximately $6 million
for Fiscal 2009 and $8 million for Fiscal 2008, and a net gain of approximately $4 million for Fiscal 2007.

Sensitivity

The Company performs a sensitivity analysis to determine the effects that market risk exposures may have on the fair
values of the Company s derivative financial instruments. To perform the sensitivity analysis, the Company assesses
the risk of loss in fair values from the effect of hypothetical changes in foreign currency exchange rates. This analysis
assumes a like movement by all foreign currencies in our hedge portfolio against the U.S. dollar. Based on all foreign
currency exchange contracts outstanding as of March 28, 2009, a 10% devaluation of the U.S. dollar as compared to
the level of foreign currency exchange rates for currencies under contract as of March 28, 2009 would result in
approximately $2 million of net unrealized losses. Conversely, a 10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar would result in
approximately $2 million of net unrealized gains. As the Company s outstanding foreign currency exchange contracts
are primarily designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, the unrealized loss or gain as a result of a 10%
devaluation or appreciation would be largely offset by changes in the underlying hedged items.

Hedge of a Net Investment in Certain European Subsidiaries

The Company designated the entire principal amount of its outstanding Euro Debt as a hedge of its net investment in
certain of its European subsidiaries. As required by FAS 133, the changes in fair value of a derivative instrument or a
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non-derivative financial instrument (such as debt) that is designated as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation are reported in the same manner as a translation adjustment under FAS No. 52, Foreign Currency
Translation, to the extent it is effective as a hedge. As such, changes in the fair value of the Euro Debt resulting from
changes in the Euro exchange rate have been, and continue to be, reported in stockholders equity as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The Company recorded within other comprehensive

58

Table of Contents 43



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

income the translation effects of the Euro Debt to U.S. dollars, resulting in a gain of $66.6 million for Fiscal 2009, and
losses of $73.8 million for Fiscal 2008 and $30.8 million for Fiscal 2007.

Interest Rate Risk Management

During the first six months of Fiscal 2007, the Company entered into three forward-starting interest rate swap
contracts in anticipation of the Company s proposed refinancing of the 1999 Euro Debt, which was completed in
October 2006. These contracts were designated as cash flow hedges of a forecasted transaction to issue new debt in
connection with the planned refinancing. The interest rate swaps hedged a total of 200.0 million, a portion of the
underlying interest rate exposure on the anticipated refinancing. Under the terms of the swaps, the Company paid a
weighted-average fixed rate of interest of 4.1% and received variable interest based on six-month EURIBOR. The
Company terminated the swaps on September 28, 2006, which was the date the interest rate for the Euro Debt was
determined. As a result, the Company made a payment of approximately 3.5 million ($4.4 million) in settlement of the
swaps. An amount of $0.2 million was recognized as a loss in Fiscal 2007 due to the partial ineffectiveness of the cash
flow hedge as a result of the forecasted transaction closing on October 5, 2006 instead of November 22, 2006 (the
maturity date of the 1999 Euro Debt). The remaining loss of $4.2 million was deferred as a component of
comprehensive income within stockholders equity and is being recognized in earnings as an adjustment to interest
expense over the seven-year term of the Euro Debt.

No other interest rate-related agreements have been entered into since Fiscal 2007.
Sensitivity

As of March 28, 2009, the Company had no variable-rate debt outstanding. As such, the Company s exposure to
changes in interest rates primarily related to its fixed rate Euro Debt. As of March 28, 2009, the carrying value of the
Euro Debt was $406.4 million and the fair value was $320.0 million. A 25 basis point increase or decrease in the level
of interest rates would, respectively, decrease or increase the fair value of the Euro Debt by approximately $3 million.
Such potential increases or decreases are based on certain simplifying assumptions, including no changes in Euro
currency exchange rates and an immediate across-the-board increase or decrease in the level of interest rates with no
other subsequent changes for the remainder of the period.

The Term Loan of ¥20.5 billion made to Polo JP Acqui, B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was repaid
by the Company by its maturity date on May 22, 2008 using $196.8 million of Impact 21 s cash on-hand acquired as
part of the Japanese Business Acquisitions.

Investment Risk Management

As of March 28, 2009, the Company had cash and cash equivalents on-hand of $481.2 million, primarily invested in
money market funds and time deposits with maturities of less than 90 days. The Company s other significant
investments included $338.7 million of short-term investments, primarily in time deposits with maturities greater than
90 days; $71.7 million of restricted cash placed in escrow with certain banks as collateral to secure guarantees in
connection with certain international tax matters; $27.1 million of deposits with maturities greater than one year; and
$2.3 million of auction rate securities issued through a municipality.

The Company evaluates investments held in unrealized loss positions for other-than-temporary impairment on a
quarterly basis. Such evaluation involves a variety of considerations, including assessments of risks and uncertainties
associated with general economic conditions and distinct conditions affecting specific issuers. Factors considered by
the Company include (i) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been below cost, (ii) the financial
condition, credit worthiness and near-term prospects of the issuer, (iii) the length of time to maturity, (iv) future
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economic conditions and market forecasts and (v) the Company s intent and ability to retain its investment for a period
of time sufficient to allow for recovery of market value. The Company limits its exposure by primarily investing in
highly rated investments issued by municipalities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The SEC s Financial Reporting Release No. 60, Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting
Policies ( FRR 60 ), suggests companies provide additional disclosure and commentary on those accounting policies
considered most critical. FRR 60 considers an accounting policy to be critical if it is important to the Company s
financial condition and results of operations and requires significant judgment and estimation on the part of
management in its application. The Company s estimates are often based on complex judgments, probabilities and
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable, but that are inherently uncertain and unpredictable. It is also possible
that other professionals, applying reasonable judgment to the same facts and circumstances, could develop and support
a range of alternative estimated amounts. The Company believes that the following list represents its critical
accounting policies as contemplated by FRR 60. For a discussion of all of the Company s significant accounting
policies, see Notes 3 and 4 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.

Sales Reserves and Uncollectible Accounts

A significant area of judgment affecting reported revenue and net income is estimating sales reserves, which represent
that portion of gross revenues not expected to be realized. In particular, wholesale revenue is reduced by estimates of
returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns and operational chargebacks. Retail revenue, including e-commerce
sales, also is reduced by estimates of returns.

In determining estimates of returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns and operational chargebacks, management
analyzes historical trends, seasonal results, current economic and market conditions and retailer performance. The
Company reviews and refines these estimates on a quarterly basis. The Company s historical estimates of these costs
have not differed materially from actual results.

Similarly, management evaluates accounts receivables to determine if they will ultimately be collected. Significant
judgments and estimates are involved in this evaluation, including an analysis of specific risks on a
customer-by-customer basis for larger accounts and customers, and a receivables aging analysis that determines the
percentage of receivables that has historically been uncollected by aged category. Based on this information,
management provides a reserve for the estimated amounts believed to be uncollectible. Although management
believes that it has adequately provided for those risks as part of its bad debt reserve, a severe and prolonged adverse
impact on its major customers business operations could have a corresponding material adverse effect on the
Company s net sales, cash flows and/or financial condition.

See Accounts Receivable in Note 3 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for an analysis of
the activity in the Company s sales reserves and allowance for doubtful accounts for each of the three fiscal years
presented.

Inventories

The Company holds inventory that is sold through wholesale distribution channels to major department stores and
specialty retail stores, including its own retail stores. The Company also holds retail inventory that is sold in its own
stores directly to consumers. Wholesale and retail inventories are stated at the lower of cost or estimated realizable
value. Cost for wholesale inventories is determined using the first-in, first-out ( FIFO ) method and cost for retail
inventories is determined on a moving-average cost basis.

The Company continually evaluates the composition of its inventories, assessing slow-turning product and fashion

product. Estimated realizable value of inventory is determined based on an analysis of historical sales trends of the
Company s individual product lines, the impact of market trends and economic conditions, and the value of current
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orders in-house relating to the future sales of inventory. Estimates may differ from actual results due to quantity,
quality and mix of products in inventory, consumer and retailer preferences and market conditions. The Company s
historical estimates of these costs and its provisions have not differed materially from actual results.

Reserves for inventory shrinkage, representing the risk over physical loss of inventory, are estimated based on
historical experience and are adjusted based upon physical inventory counts.
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Purchase Accounting

The Company accounts for its business acquisitions under the purchase method of accounting. As such, the total cost
of acquisitions is allocated to the underlying net assets based on their respective estimated fair values. The excess of
the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Determining the
fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed requires management s judgment and often involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with respect to future cash inflows and outflows,
discount rates, asset lives and market multiples, among other items.

In addition, in connection with its business acquisitions, the Company evaluates the terms of any pre-existing

relationships to determine if a settlement of the pre-existing relationship exists. These pre-existing relationships

primarily relate to licensing agreements. In accordance with the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) Issue No. 04-1,
Accounting for Pre-existing Relationships between the Parties to a Business Combination, the Company is required to

allocate the aggregate consideration exchanged in these transactions between the value of the business acquired and

the value of the settlement of any pre-existing relationships in proportion to estimates of their respective fair values. If

the terms of the pre-existing relationships were determined to not be reflective of market, a settlement gain or loss

would be recognized in earnings. Accordingly, significant judgment is required to determine the respective fair values

of the business acquired and the value of the settlement of the pre-existing relationship. The Company has historically

utilized independent valuation firms to assist in the determination of fair value.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements ( FAS 157 orthe Standard ). FAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
within an identified principal or most advantageous market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with US GAAP and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements through a three-level
valuation hierarchy. The Company adopted the provisions of FAS 157 for all of its financial assets and liabilities
within the Standard s scope as of the beginning of Fiscal 2009 (March 30, 2008). The Company uses judgment in the
determination of the applicable level within the hierarchy of a particular asset or liability when evaluating the inputs
used in valuation as of the measurement date, notably the extent to which the inputs are market-based (observable) or
internally derived (unobservable). See Notes 4 and 15 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements
for further discussion of the effect of this accounting change on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets ( FAS 142 ). Under FAS 142, goodwill, including any goodwill included in the carrying
value of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting, and certain other intangible assets deemed
to have indefinite useful lives, are not amortized. Rather, goodwill and such indefinite-lived intangible assets are
assessed for impairment at least annually based on comparisons of their respective fair values to their carrying values.
Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and, along with other

long-lived assets, are evaluated for impairment periodically whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their related carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with FAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ( FAS 144 ).

In accordance with FAS 142, goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The first step of the

goodwill impairment test is to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its net
book value (or carrying amount), including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount,
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goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not to be impaired and performance of the second step of the impairment
test is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill
impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit s goodwill with the carrying amount
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of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill,
an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined

in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. That is, the fair value of the
reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets)

as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value was the purchase price paid to
acquire the reporting unit.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit under the first step of the goodwill impairment test and determining the
fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including unrecognized intangible assets) under the
second step of the goodwill impairment test is judgmental in nature and often involves the use of significant estimates
and assumptions. Similarly, estimates and assumptions are used in determining the fair value of other intangible
assets. These estimates and assumptions could have a significant impact on whether or not an impairment charge is
recognized and the magnitude of any such charge. To assist management in the process of determining goodwill
impairment, the Company reviews and considers appraisals from independent valuation firms. Estimates of fair value
are primarily determined using discounted cash flows, market comparisons and recent transactions. These approaches
use significant estimates and assumptions, including projected future cash flows (including timing), discount rates
reflecting the risks inherent in future cash flows, perpetual growth rates and determination of appropriate market
comparables.

The impairment test for other indefinite-lived intangible assets consists of a comparison of the fair value of the
intangible asset with its carrying value. If the carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the excess. In addition, in evaluating finite-lived intangible assets for
recoverability, the Company uses its best estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and
eventual disposition in accordance with FAS 144. To the extent that estimated future undiscounted net cash flows
attributable to the asset are less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the difference
between the carrying value of such asset and its fair value.

There have been no impairment losses recorded in connection with the assessment of the recoverability of goodwill or
other intangible assets during any of the three fiscal years presented.

Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment, along with other long-lived assets, are evaluated for impairment periodically whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their related carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance
with FAS 144. In evaluating long-lived assets for recoverability, the Company uses its best estimate of future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. To the extent that estimated future
undiscounted net cash flows attributable to the asset are less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized equal to the difference between the carrying value of such asset and its fair value. Assets to be disposed of
and for which there is a committed plan of disposal are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value less costs
to sell.

In determining future cash flows, the Company takes various factors into account, including changes in merchandising
strategy, the emphasis on retail store cost controls, the effects of macroeconomic trends such as consumer spending,
and the impacts of more experienced retail store managers and increased local advertising. Since the determination of
future cash flows is an estimate of future performance, there may be future impairments in the event that future cash
flows do not meet expectations.

During Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $55.4 million and
$5.0 million, respectively, to reduce the net carrying value of certain long-lived assets primarily in its Retail segment
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to their estimated fair value. No impairment charges were recorded in Fiscal 2007. See Note 11 to the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset and liability method prescribed by FAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes ( FAS 109 ). Under this method, income taxes (i.e., deferred tax assets and liabilities, current taxes
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payable/refunds receivable and tax expense) are recorded based on amounts refundable or payable in the current year
and include the results of any difference between US GAAP and tax reporting. Deferred income taxes reflect the tax
effect of certain net operating loss, capital loss and general business credit carryforwards and the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax
purposes, as determined under enacted tax laws and rates. The Company accounts for the financial effect of changes in
tax laws or rates in the period of enactment.

In addition, valuation allowances are established when management determines that it is more-likely-than-not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. Tax valuation allowances are analyzed periodically and
adjusted as events occur, or circumstances change, that warrant adjustments to those balances.

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48. Upon the adoption of the provisions of FIN 48, the Company
changed its policy related to the accounting for income tax uncertainties. If the Company considers that a tax position
is more-likely-than-not of being sustained upon audit, based solely on the technical merits of the position, it
recognizes the tax benefit. The Company measures the tax benefit by determining the largest amount that is greater
than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement, presuming that the tax position is examined by the appropriate
taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. These assessments can be complex and require
significant judgment, and the Company often obtains assistance from external advisors. To the extent that the
Company s estimates change or the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax provision in the period in which such determinations are made. If the initial
assessment fails to result in the recognition of a tax benefit, the Company regularly monitors its position and
subsequently recognizes the tax benefit if (i) there are changes in tax law or analogous case law that sufficiently raise
the likelihood of prevailing on the technical merits of the position to more-likely-than-not, (ii) the statute of
limitations expires, or (iii) there is a completion of an audit resulting in a settlement of that tax year with the
appropriate agency. Uncertain tax positions are classified as current only when the Company expects to pay cash
within the next twelve months. Interest and penalties, if any, are recorded within the provision for income taxes in the
Company s consolidated statements of operations and are classified on the consolidated balance sheets with the related
liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

See Note 13 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the Company s
income taxes and the adoption of FIN 48.

Contingencies

The Company periodically is exposed to various contingencies in the ordinary course of conducting its business,
including certain litigations, alleged information system security breach matters, contractual disputes, employee
relation matters, various tax audits, and trademark and intellectual property matters and disputes. In accordance with
FAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( FAS 5 ), the Company records a liability for such contingencies to the
extent that it concludes their occurrence is probable and the related losses are estimable. In addition, if it is reasonably
possible that an unfavorable settlement of a contingency could exceed the established liability, the Company discloses
the estimated impact on its liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. Management considers many
factors in making these assessments. As the ultimate resolution of contingencies is inherently unpredictable, these
assessments can involve a series of complex judgments about future events including, but not limited to, court rulings,
negotiations between affected parties and governmental actions. As a result, the accounting for loss contingencies
relies heavily on estimates and assumptions.

Stock-Based Compensation
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The Company accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with FAS No. 123R, Share-Based
Payment ( FAS 123R ), which requires all share-based payments to employees and non-employee directors to be
expensed based on the grant date fair value of the awards over the requisite service period, adjusted for estimated
forfeitures.
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Stock options are granted to employees and non-employee directors with exercise prices equal to fair market value at
the date of grant. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock
options granted, which requires the input of subjective assumptions. Certain key assumptions involve estimating
future uncertain events. The key factors influencing the estimation process include the expected term of the option, the
expected stock price volatility factor, the expected dividend yield and risk-free interest rate, among others. Generally,
once stock option values are determined, current accounting practices do not permit them to be changed, even if the
estimates used are different from the actuals.

Determining the fair value of stock-based compensation at the date of grant requires significant judgment by
management, including estimates of the above Black-Scholes assumptions. In addition, judgment is required in
estimating the number of stock-based awards that are expected to be forfeited. If actual results differ significantly
from these estimates, if management changes its assumptions for future stock-based award grants, or if there are
changes in market conditions, stock-based compensation expense and the Company s results of operations could be
materially impacted.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units ( RSUs )

The Company grants restricted shares of Class A common stock and service-based RSUs to certain of its senior
executives and non-employee directors. In addition, the Company grants performance-based RSUs to such senior
executives and other key executives, and certain other employees of the Company. The fair values of restricted stock
shares and RSUs are based on the fair value of unrestricted Class A common stock, as adjusted to reflect the absence
of dividends for those restricted securities that are not entitled to dividend equivalents. Compensation expense for
performance-based RSUs is recognized over the related service period when attainment of the performance goals is
deemed probable, which involves judgment on the part of management.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Refer to Note 4 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for a discussion of certain accounting
standards the Company is not yet required to adopt which may impact its results of operations and/or financial
condition in future reporting periods.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

For a discussion of the Company s exposure to market risk, see Market Risk Management in Item 7 included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
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Disclosure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures of an issuer that are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports that it files or submits under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that material information required to be disclosed by an issuer
in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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is accumulated and communicated to the issuer s management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

We have evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the fiscal year covered by
this annual report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level, as of the fiscal
year end covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(b) Management s Report of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Internal control over financial reporting
includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial statements; providing
reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of the Company s assets are made in accordance with management
authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company s
assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected. Further, the evaluation of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting was made as of a specific date, and continued
effectiveness in future periods is subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may decline.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
the end of the fiscal year covered by this report based on the framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( COSO ) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on this
evaluation, management concluded that the Company s internal controls over financial reporting were effective at the
reasonable assurance level as of the fiscal year end covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company s independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on
the Company s internal control over financial reporting as included elsewhere herein.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of Fiscal
2009 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On May 21, 2009, the Company s board of directors adopted an amendment to the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive

Plan that allows the Company to seek repayment in certain circumstances of stock-based and other compensation
awards that are granted under the plan on or after May 21, 2009 to the Company s named executive officers. The
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complete text of the amendment is included as Exhibit 10.26 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

65

Table of Contents

57



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information relating to our directors and corporate governance will be set forth in the Company s proxy statement for
its 2009 annual meeting of stockholders to be filed within 120 days after March 28, 2009 (the Proxy Statement ) and is
incorporated by reference herein. Information relating to our executive officers is set forth in Item I of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K under the caption Executive Officers.

The Company has a Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officers and Senior Financial Officers that applies to our
principal executive officer, our principal operating officer, our principal financial officer, our principal accounting
officer and our controller. You can find our Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officers and Senior Financial
Officers on our internet site, http://investor.ralphlauren.com. We will post any amendments to the Code of Ethics for
Principal Executive Officers and Senior Financial Officers and any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the
rules of either the SEC or the NYSE on our internet site.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to executive and director compensation will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and such
information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of March 28, 2009

The following table sets forth information as of March 28, 2009 regarding compensation plans under which the
Company s equity securities are authorized for issuance:

(a) (b) (c)
Numbers of Number of Securities
Remaining Available
Securities for
to be Issued Future Issuance
upon Under
Equity
Exercise of Compensation
Outstanding Weighted-Average Plans (Excluding
Options, Securities Reflected
Warrants Exercise Price of in
Outstanding
Plan Category and Rights Options ($) Column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 7,52481701)  $ 44.220) 3,975,179
Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 7,524,817 $ 44.22 3,975,179
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@) Consists of 5,698,269 options to purchase shares of our Class A common stock and 1,826,548 restricted stock
units that are payable solely in shares of Class A common stock. Does not include 23,424 outstanding restricted
shares that are subject to forfeiture.

@) Represents the weighted average exercise price of the outstanding stock options. No exercise price is payable with
respect to the outstanding restricted stock units.

3 All of the securities remaining available for future issuance set forth in column (¢) may be in the form of options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards or other stock-based awards
under the Company s Amended and Restated 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan. An additional 23,424
outstanding shares of restricted stock granted under the Company s Amended and Restated 1997 Long-Term Stock
Incentive Plan that remain subject to forfeiture are not reflected in column (c).

Other information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set forth in the
Proxy Statement and such information is incorporated by reference herein.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required to be included by Item 13 of Form 10-K will be included in the Proxy Statement and such
information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required to be included by Item 14 of Form 10-K will be included in the Proxy Statement and such
information is incorporated by reference herein.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) 1., 2. Financial Statements and Schedules. See index on Page F-1.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number

3.1

32

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-24733) (the S-1 ))*

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended September 29, 2007)*

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 9, 1997 by and among Ralph Lauren, GS Capital
Partners, L.P., GS Capital Partner PRL Holding I, L.P., GS Capital Partners PRL Holding II, L.P.,
Stone Street Fund 1994, L.P., Stone Street 1994 Subsidiary Corp., Bridge Street Fund 1994, L.P., and
Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the S-1)*

U.S.A. Design and Consulting Agreement, dated January 1, 1985, between Ralph Lauren, individually
and d/b/a Ralph Lauren Design Studio, and Cosmair, Inc., and letter Agreement related thereto dated
January 1, 1985** (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the S-1)*

Restated U.S.A. License Agreement, dated January 1, 1985, between Ricky Lauren and Mark N.
Kaplan, as Licensor, and Cosmair, Inc., as Licensee, and letter Agreement related thereto dated
January 1, 1985** (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the S-1)*

Foreign Design and Consulting Agreement, dated January 1, 1985, between Ralph Lauren, individually
and d/b/a Ralph Lauren Design Studio, as Licensor, and L. Oreal S.A., as Licensee, and letter
Agreements related thereto dated January 1, 1985, September 16, 1994 and October 25, 1994** (filed
as Exhibit 10.6 to the S-1)*

Restated Foreign License Agreement, dated January 1, 1985, between The Polo/Lauren Company, as
Licensor, and L Oreal S.A., as Licensee, Letter Agreement related thereto dated January 1, 1985, and
Supplementary Agreement thereto, dated October 1, 1991** (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the S-1)*
Amendment, dated November 27, 1992, to Foreign Design and Consulting Agreement and Restated
Foreign License Agreement®* (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the S-1)*

Agency Agreement dated October 5, 2006, between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and Deutsche
Bank AG, London Branch and Deutsche Bank Luxemburg S.A., as fiscal and principal paying agent
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 30, 2006)*

Table of Contents 60



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and its Directors and
Executive Officers (filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the S-1)*

10.9  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective as of July 23, 2002, between Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 29, 2002)*

10.10  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2003, between Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation and Ralph Lauren (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 28, 2003)*

10.11  Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2004, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Ralph Lauren (filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2005 (the Fiscal 2006 10-K ))*
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Exhibit
Number

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Description

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2004, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Ralph Lauren (filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Fiscal 2006 10-K)*

Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan, as amended as of August 9,
2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 29, 2007)*
Amendment No. 1, dated July 1, 2004, to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended October 2, 2004)*

Amendment No. 2, dated September 5, 2007, to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 29, 2007)*

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 23, 2008, to the Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 27, 2008)*

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2004, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Fiscal 2006 10-K)*

Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 23, 2008, to the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended December 27, 2008)*

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2002, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Fiscal 2006 10-K)*

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2002, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the Fiscal 2006 10-K)*

Deferred Compensation Agreement, dated as of September 19, 2002, between Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Fiscal 2006 10-K)*

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, RL Childrenswear
Company, LLC and The Seller Affiliate Group (as defined therein) dated March 25, 2004 (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 3, 2004)*

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 2, 2004, to Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation, RL Childrenswear Company, LLC and The Seller Affiliate Group (as defined
therein) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 3, 2004)*

Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated as of
August 12, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 8-K dated August 12, 2004)*

Amendment, dated as of June 30, 2006, to the Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation 1997 Long-Term Stock
Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated as of August 12, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 1, 2006)*

Amendment No. 2, dated as of May 21, 2009, to the Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation 1997 Long-Term
Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated as of August 12, 2004.

CIiff Restricted Performance Share Unit Award Overview containing the standard terms of restricted
performance share awards under the Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended July 1, 2006)*

Pro-Rata Restricted Performance Share Unit Award Overview containing the standard terms of
restriction performance share awards under the Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 1, 2006)*

Stock Option Award Overview U.S. containing the standard terms of stock option award under the
Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 1,
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2006)*

10.30 Definitive Agreement, dated April 13, 2007, among Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, PRL Japan
Kabushiki Kaisha, Onward Kashiyama Co., Ltd and Impact 21 Co., Ltd.(filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the
Fiscal 2008 10-K)*

10.31  Amended and Restated Credit Agreement as of May 22, 2007 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of
November 28, 2006, among Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, Polo JP Acqui B.V., the lenders party
thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007)*
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.32  Amendment and Restatement Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2007, among Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation, Polo JP Acqui B.V., the lenders party thereto, The Bank of New York, Citibank, N.A.,
Bank of America, N.A. and Wachovia Bank National Association, as syndication agents, Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation and Deutsche Bank Securities, s co-agents and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administrative agent under the Credit Agreement dated as of November 28, 2006 among Polo
Ralph Lauren Corporation, the lenders from time to time party thereto and the agents party thereto
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007)*

10.33  Employment Agreement, dated as of September 4, 2004, between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and
Jackwyn Nemerov (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 2,
2004)*

10.34  Amendment No. 1, effective as of January 1, 2009, to the Employment Agreement between Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation and Jackwyn Nemerov (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended December 27, 2008)*

10.35 Employment Agreement, dated as of March 26, 2007, between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and
Tracey T. Travis (filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Fiscal 2007 10-K)*

10.36  Amendment No. 1, effective as of January 1, 2009, to the Employment Agreement between Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation and Tracey Travis (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended December 27, 2008)*

10.37 Employment Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2007, between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and
Mitchell A. Kosh (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2007)*

10.38  Amendment No. 1, effective as of January 1, 2009, to the Employment Agreement between Polo Ralph
Lauren Corporation and Mitchell Kosh (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended December 27, 2008)*

10.39  Cross Default and Term Extension Agreement, dated May 11, 1998, among PRL USA, Inc., The
Polo/Lauren Company, L.P., Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, Jones Apparel Group, Inc. and Jones
Investment Co., Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
December 28, 2002)*

10.40 Amended and Restated Polo Ralph Lauren Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2005)*

14.1 Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officers and Senior Financial Officers (filed as Exhibit 14.1 to
the Fiscal 2003 Form 10-K)*

21.1 List of Significant Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

23.2  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

31.1 Certification of Ralph Lauren required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)

31.2  Certification of Tracey T. Travis required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)

32.1 Certification of Ralph Lauren Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2  Certification of Tracey T. Travis Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or

otherwise subject to the liability of that Section. Such exhibits shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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* Incorporated herein by reference.
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

** Portions of Exhibits 10.2-10.6 have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment and have been
filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on May 26, 2009.

POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

By: /s/ TRACEY T. TRAVIS
Tracey T. Travis

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature

/s/ RALPH LAUREN
Ralph Lauren
/s/ ROGER N. FARAH
Roger N. Farah
/s/ JACKWYN L. NEMEROV
Jackwyn L. Nemerov
/s/ TRACEY T. TRAVIS
Tracey T. Travis
/s/ JOHN R. ALCHIN
John R. Alchin
/s/ ARNOLD H. ARONSON

Arnold H. Aronson

/s/ FRANK A. BENNACK, JR.

Frank A. Bennack, Jr.

/s/ DR.JOYCE F. BROWN
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Title

Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
President, Chief Operating Officer

and Director

Executive Vice President and Director

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009
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Dr. Joyce F. Brown

/s/ JOEL L. FLEISHMAN Director May 26, 2009
Joel L. Fleishman
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Signature

/s/ STEVEN P. MURPHY
Steven P. Murphy
/s/ ROBERT C. WRIGHT

Robert C. Wright

Director

Director
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Title

Date

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations F-3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6
Management s Report on Responsibility for Financial Statements F-52
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms F-53
Supplementary Information:
Selected Financial Information F-56
Quarterly Financial Information F-58

EX-10.26: AMENDMENT NO.2 TO 1997 LONG-TERM STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
EX-21.1: LIST OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

EX-23.1: CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP

EX-23.2: CONSENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

EX-31.1: CERTIFICATION

EX-31.2: CERTIFICATION

EX-32.1: CERTIFICATION

EX-32.2: CERTIFICATION

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated
financial statements or notes thereto.
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $190.9 million and $172.0 million
Inventories
Deferred tax assets
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses and other
Current maturities of debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Non-current liability for unrecognized tax benefits
Other non-current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Total liabilities

Stockholders equity:

Class A common stock, par value $.01 per share; 72.3 million and 70.5 million shares
issued; 55.9 million and 56.2 million shares outstanding

Class B common stock, par value $.01 per share; 43.3 million shares issued and
outstanding

Additional paid-in-capital

Table of Contents

March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)
$ 4812 $ 551.5

338.7 74.3
474.9 508.4
525.1 514.9
101.8 76.6
135.0 167.8
2,056.7 1,893.5
651.6 709.9
102.8 116.9
966.4 975.1
348.9 349.3
230.1 320.8
$ 4,356.5 $ 43655
$ 1659 $ 205.7
35.9 28.8
472.3 467.7
206.4
674.1 908.6
406.4 472.8
154.8 155.2
386.1 439.2
1,621.4 1,975.8
0.7 0.7
04 04
1,108.4 1,017.6
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Retained earnings 2,465.5 2,079.3
Treasury stock, Class A, at cost (16.4 million and 14.3 million shares) (966.7) (820.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 126.8 112.6
Total stockholders equity 2,735.1 2,389.7
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 4,356.5 $ 4,365.5
See accompanying notes.
F-2
Table of Contents 71



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales
Licensing revenue

Net revenues
Cost of goods sold@

Gross profit

Other costs and expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses(®
Amortization of intangible assets

Impairments of assets

Restructuring charges

Total other costs and expenses

Operating income

Foreign currency gains (losses)
Interest expense

Interest and other income, net

Equity in income (loss) of equity-method investees

Minority interest expense

Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

Table of Contents

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007

(millions, except per share data)

$ 4,823.7 $ 4,670.7 $ 4,059.1

195.2 209.4 236.3
5,018.9 4,880.1 42954
(2,288.2) (2,242.0) (1,959.2)
2,730.7 2,638.1 2,336.2
(2,036.0) (1,932.5) (1,663.4)
(20.2) 47.2) (15.6)

(55.4) (5.0)

(23.6) (4.6)
(2,135.2) (1,984.7) (1,683.6)
595.5 653.4 652.6
1.6 (6.4) (1.5)
(26.6) (25.7) (21.6)
22.0 24.7 26.1
(5.0) (1.8) 3.0
2.1) (15.3)

587.5 642.1 643.3
(181.5) (222.3) (242.4)

$  406.0 $ 419.8 $ 400.9

$ 4.09 $ 4.10 $ 3.84

$ 4.01 $ 3.99 $ 3.73

99.2 102.3 104.4
101.3 105.2 107.6
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Dividends declared per share $ 0.20 $ 0.20 $ 0.20
@ Includes total depreciation expense of: $ 1642 $ (1541 $  (129.1)
See accompanying notes.
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 4060 $ 4198 $  400.9
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 184.4 201.3 144.7
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (35.1) (7.7) (112.4)
Minority interest expense 2.1 15.3
Equity in loss (income) of equity-method investees, net of dividends
received 5.0 1.8 (1.0)
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense 49.7 70.7 43.6
Non-cash impairments of assets 55.4 5.0
Non-cash provision for bad debt expense 13.9 2.6 1.9
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 33
Non-cash foreign currency (gains) losses 2.3 (1.3) 6.2
Non-cash restructuring charges 1.6 1.1
Non-cash litigation-related charges (reversals of excess reserves) 5.6 “4.1) 3.0
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1.1 10.0 26.4
Inventories (10.5) 81.8 (32.2)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 55.2 (10.8) 38.7
Deferred income liabilities (25.7) 22.7) 202.6
Other balance sheet changes 65.3 (73.1) 54.0
Net cash provided by operating activities 774.2 695.4 796.1
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions and ventures, net of cash acquired and purchase price
settlements (46.3) (188.7) (176.1)
Purchases of investments (623.1) (96.8)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 369.5 12.7
Capital expenditures (185.0) (217.1) (184.0)
Change in restricted cash deposits 26.9 (15.1) (74.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (458.0) (505.0) (434.6)
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Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of debt 168.9 380.0
Repayment of debt (196.8) (291.6)
Debt issuance costs 0.3) (2.6)
Payments of capital lease obligations (6.7) (7.7) (5.0
Payments of dividends (19.9) (20.5) (20.9)
Distributions to minority interest holders 4.5)
Repurchases of common stock, including shares surrendered for tax
withholdings (169.8) (475.4) (231.3)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 29.0 40.1 514
Termination of interest rate swap agreements 4.4)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 12.1 344 33.7
Net cash used in financing activities (352.1) (260.5) (95.2)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (34.4) 57.7 11.9
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (70.3) (12.4) 278.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 551.5 563.9 285.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4812 $ 5515 § 5639

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at April 1,
2006

Cumulative effect of
adopting SAB 108@
(Note 4)

Cumulative effect of
adopting FAS 123R
(Note 4)
Comprehensive income:
Net income

Foreign currency
translation adjustments
Net realized and
unrealized losses on
derivative financial
instruments

Total comprehensive
income

Cash dividends declared
Repurchases of common
stock

Shares issued and equity
grants made pursuant to
stock compensation
plans(®

Balance at March 31,
2007

Cumulative effect of
adopting FIN 48

(Note 13)
Comprehensive income:
Net income

Foreign currency
translation adjustments
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Additional

Common Stock Paid-In Retained

Shares Amount Capital Earnings

1097 $ 1.1 $ 7836 § 1,379.2

(16.9)
42.7)
400.9
(20.9)
2.2 131.6

1119 $ 1.1 $ 8725 $ 1,7423

(62.5)

419.8

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated

Treasury Stock Other

Comprehensiténearned
Income

Amount (Loss) Compensation Total

(87.1) $ 155 $ (42.7) $ 2,049.6

(16.9)
42.7

543

(29.3)
4259
(20.9)
(231.3) (231.3)
(3.1 128.5
79 $ (3215 $ 405 $ $ 23349
(62.5)

135.8
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Net realized and

unrealized losses on

derivative financial

instruments (63.3)

Net unrealized losses on

available-for-sale

investments 0.2)

Net unrealized losses on

defined benefit plans (0.2)

Total comprehensive

income 491.9
Cash dividends declared (20.3) (20.3)
Repurchases of common

stock 6.4 (499.4) (499.4)
Shares issued and equity

grants made pursuant to

stock compensation

plans(® 1.9 145.1 145.1

Balance at March 29,

2008 113.8 $ 1.1 $ 1,017.6 $ 2,079.3 143 $ (8209) $ 1126 $ $ 2,389.7
Comprehensive income:

Net income 406.0

Foreign currency

translation adjustments (69.7)

Net realized and

unrealized gains on

derivative financial

instruments 84.1

Net unrealized gains on

available-for-sale

investments 0.3

Net unrealized losses on

defined benefit plans 0.5

Total comprehensive

income 420.2
Cash dividends declared (19.8) (19.8)
Repurchases of common

stock 2.1 (145.8) (145.8)
Shares issued and equity

grants made pursuant to

stock compensation

plans(® 1.8 90.8 90.8
Balance at March 28,
2009 1156 $ 1.1 $ 1,1084 $ 2,465.5 164 $ (966.7) $ 1268 $ $ 2,735.1

(@  Net of $3.6 million tax effect.
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(b) " Includes income tax benefits relating to the exercise of employee stock options of approximately $12 million in
Fiscal 2009, $34 million in Fiscal 2008 and $33 million in Fiscal 2007.

See accompanying notes.
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Description of Business

Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation ( PRLC ) is a global leader in the design, marketing and distribution of premium

lifestyle products, including men s, women s and children s apparel, accessories, fragrances and home furnishings.

PRLC s long-standing reputation and distinctive image have been consistently developed across an expanding number

of products, brands and international markets. PRLC s brand names include Polo by Ralph Lauren, Ralph Lauren

Purple Label, Ralph Lauren Collection, Black Label, Blue Label, Lauren by Ralph Lauren, RRL, RLX, Rugby, Ralph

Lauren Childrenswear, American Living, Chaps and Club Monaco, among others. PRLC and its subsidiaries are

collectively referred to herein as the Company, we, us, our and ourselves, unless the contextindicates otherwise

The Company classifies its businesses into three segments: Wholesale, Retail and Licensing. The Company s
wholesale sales are made principally to major department and specialty stores located throughout the U.S., Europe and
Asia. The Company also sells directly to consumers through full-price and factory retail stores located throughout the
U.S., Canada, Europe, South America and Asia, and through its retail internet sites located at www.RalphLauren.com
and www.Rugby.com. In addition, the Company often licenses the right to unrelated third parties to use its various
trademarks in connection with the manufacture and sale of designated products, such as apparel, eyewear and
fragrances, in specified geographical areas for specified periods.

2. Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company and all entities in which the Company has a controlling voting interest. The consolidated financial
statements also include the accounts of any variable interest entities in which the Company is considered to be the
primary beneficiary and such entities are required to be consolidated in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. ( US GAAP ).

Prior to the Company s acquisition of the minority ownership interest in Polo Ralph Lauren Japan Corporation ( PRL
Japan ) in May 2007, the Company consolidated PRL Japan, formerly a 50%-owned venture with Onward Kashiyama
Co. Ltd and its affiliates ( Onward Kashiyama ) and The Seibu Department Stores, Ltd ( Seibu ), pursuant to the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) Interpretation ( FIN ) No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities ( FIN 46R ). PRL Japan holds the master license to conduct the Company s business in Japan.
Additionally, prior to the acquisition of the minority ownership interests in Ralph Lauren Media, LLC ( RL Media ) in
March 2007, the Company consolidated RL Media, formerly a 50%-owned venture with NBC-Lauren Media

Holdings, Inc., a subsidiary wholly owned by the National Broadcasting Company, Inc. ( NBC ) and Value Vision
Media, Inc. ( Value Vision ), pursuant to FIN 46R. RL Media conducts the Company s e-commerce initiatives through
RalphLauren.com and Rugby.com. See Note 5 for further discussion of the acquisitions referred to above, including
their respective bases of consolidation in the fiscal years presented.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year
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The Company utilizes a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to March 31. As such, fiscal year 2009
ended on March 28, 2009 and reflected a 52-week period ( Fiscal 2009 ); fiscal year 2008 ended on March 29, 2008 and
reflected a 52-week period ( Fiscal 2008 ); and fiscal year 2007 ended on March 31, 2007 and also reflected a 52-week
period ( Fiscal 2007 ).

The financial position and operating results of the Company s consolidated PRL Japan and Impact 21 Co., Ltd. ( Impact
21 ) entities located in Japan are reported on a one-month lag. Accordingly, the Company s operating
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

results for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 include the operating results of PRL Japan and Impact 21 for the twelve-month
periods ended February 28, 2009 and February 29, 2008, respectively, and the Company s operating results for Fiscal
2007 include the operating results of PRL Japan for the twelve-month period ended February 28, 2007. The net effect

of this reporting lag is not material to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and footnotes thereto. Actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.

Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements include reserves for customer
returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns and operational chargebacks; the realizability of inventory; reserves for
litigation and other contingencies; useful lives and impairments of long-lived tangible and intangible assets;
accounting for income taxes and related uncertain tax positions; the valuation of stock-based compensation and related
expected forfeiture rates; reserves for restructuring; and accounting for business combinations.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years financial information in order to conform to the current
year s presentation.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized across all segments of the business when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement,
delivery has occurred, price has been fixed or is determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue within the Company s Wholesale segment is recognized at the time title passes and risk of loss is transferred
to customers. Wholesale revenue is recorded net of estimates of returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns,
operational chargebacks and certain cooperative advertising allowances. Returns and allowances require pre-approval
from management and discounts are based on trade terms. Estimates for end-of-season markdown reserves are based
on historical trends, seasonal results, an evaluation of current economic and market conditions and retailer
performance. Estimates for operational chargebacks are based on actual notifications of order fulfillment discrepancies
and historical trends. The Company reviews and refines these estimates on a quarterly basis. The Company s historical
estimates of these costs have not differed materially from actual results.

Retail store revenue is recognized net of estimated returns at the time of sale to consumers. E-commerce revenue from
sales of products ordered through the Company s retail internet sites at RalphLauren.com and Rugby.com is
recognized upon delivery and receipt of the shipment by its customers. Such revenue also is reduced by an estimate of
returns.
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Gift cards issued by the Company are recorded as a liability until they are redeemed, at which point revenue is
recognized. The Company recognizes income for unredeemed gift cards when the likelihood of a gift card being
redeemed by a customer is remote and the Company determines that it does not have a legal obligation to remit the
value of the unredeemed gift card to the relevant jurisdiction as unclaimed or abandoned property.

Revenue from licensing arrangements is recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements, generally based upon the higher of (a) contractually guaranteed minimum royalty levels or (b) actual sales
and royalty data, or estimates thereof, received from the Company s licensees.

The Company accounts for sales and other related taxes on a net basis, excluding such taxes from revenue.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Cost of Goods Sold and Selling Expenses

Cost of goods sold includes the expenses incurred to acquire and produce inventory for sale, including product costs,
freight-in and import costs, as well as changes in reserves for shrinkage and inventory realizability. Gains and losses
associated with foreign currency exchange contracts related to the hedging of inventory purchases also are recognized
within cost of goods sold when the inventory being hedged is sold. The costs of selling merchandise, including those
associated with preparing the merchandise for sale, such as picking, packing, warehousing and order charges, are
included in selling, general and administrative ( SG&A ) expenses.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The costs associated with shipping goods to customers are reflected as a component of SG&A expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations. Shipping and handling costs incurred approximated $95 million in Fiscal 2009,
$108 million in Fiscal 2008 and $92 million in Fiscal 2007. Shipping and handling charges billed to customers are
included in revenue.

Advertising Costs

In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ( AICPA ) Statement of Position ( SOP )

No. 93-7, Reporting on Advertising Costs, advertising costs, including the costs to produce advertising, are expensed

when the advertisement is first exhibited. In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) Issue No. 01-09,
Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor s Products, costs of

out-of-store advertising paid to wholesale customers under cooperative advertising programs are expensed as an

advertising cost if both the identified advertising benefit is sufficiently separable from the purchase of the Company s

products by customers and the fair value of such benefit is measurable. Otherwise, such costs are reflected as a

reduction of revenue. Costs of in-store advertising paid to wholesale customers under cooperative advertising

programs are not included in advertising costs, but are reflected as a reduction of revenues since the benefits are not

sufficiently separable from the purchases of the Company s products by customers.

Advertising expense amounted to approximately $171 million for Fiscal 2009, $188 million for Fiscal 2008 and

$181 million for Fiscal 2007. Deferred advertising costs, which principally relate to advertisements that have not yet
been exhibited or services that have not yet been received, were approximately $6 million and $8 million at the end of
Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The financial position and operating results of foreign operations are primarily consolidated using the local currency

as the functional currency. Local currency assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange on the balance
sheet date, and local currency revenue and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange during the period.
Resulting translation gains or losses are included in the consolidated statements of stockholders equity as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses on translation of intercompany loans with

foreign subsidiaries of a long-term investment nature also are included within this component of stockholders equity.
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The Company also recognizes gains and losses on transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the
respective entity s functional currency. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses also include amounts realized on
the settlement of intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries that are either of a short-term investment nature or were
previously of a long-term investment nature and deferred as a component of stockholders equity. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses are recognized in earnings and separately disclosed in the consolidated statements of
operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss), which is reported in the consolidated statements of stockholders equity, consists of net
income (loss) and other gains and losses affecting equity that, under US GAAP, are excluded from net income (loss).
The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the Company primarily consist of foreign currency
translation gains and losses; unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investments; unrealized gains and losses
related to the accounting for defined benefit plans; and deferred gains and losses on hedging instruments, such as
forward foreign currency exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges and changes in the fair value of the
Company s Euro-denominated debt designated as a hedge of changes in the fair value of the Company s net investment
in certain of its European subsidiaries.

Net Income Per Common Share

Net income per common share is determined in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( FAS )
No. 128, Earnings per Share ( FAS 128 ). Under the provisions of FAS 128, basic net income per common share is
computed by dividing the net income applicable to common shares after preferred dividend requirements, if any, by

the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Weighted-average common shares
include shares of the Company s Class A and Class B common stock. Diluted net income per common share adjusts
basic net income per common share for the effects of outstanding stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units
and any other potentially dilutive financial instruments, only in the periods in which such effect is dilutive under the
treasury stock method.

The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding used to calculate basic net income per common share is
reconciled to those shares used in calculating diluted net income per common share as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Basic 99.2 102.3 104.4
Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units 2.1 2.9 3.2
Diluted shares 101.3 105.2 107.6

Options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price greater than the average market price of the common
stock during the reporting period are anti-dilutive and therefore not included in the computation of diluted net income
per common share. In addition, the Company has outstanding restricted stock units that are issuable only upon the
achievement of certain service and/or performance goals. Such performance-based restricted stock units are included
in the computation of diluted shares only to the extent the underlying performance conditions (a) are satisfied prior to
the end of the reporting period or (b) would be satisfied if the end of the reporting period were the end of the related
contingency period and the result would be dilutive under the treasury stock method. As of the end of Fiscal 2009,
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Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, there was an aggregate of approximately 3.5 million, 1.5 million and 1.0 million,
respectively, of additional shares issuable upon the exercise of anti-dilutive options and/or the contingent vesting of
performance-based restricted stock units that were excluded from the diluted share calculations.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with FAS No. 123R, Share-Based
Payment ( FAS 123R ), which requires all share-based payments to employees and non-employee directors to be

expensed based on the grant date fair value of the awards over the requisite service period, adjusted
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for estimated forfeitures. The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation method to determine the grant date fair
value of its stock option awards.

See Note 19 for further discussion of the Company s stock-based compensation.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
including investments in debt securities. Investments in debt securities are diversified among high-credit quality
securities in accordance with the Company s risk-management policies, and primarily include commercial paper and
money market funds.

Restricted Cash

From time to time, the Company is required to place cash in escrow with various banks as collateral, primarily to
secure guarantees of corresponding amounts made by the banks to international tax authorities on behalf of the
Company, such as to secure refunds of value-added tax payments in certain international tax jurisdictions or in the
case of certain international tax audits. As of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, the Company had approximately
$72 million and $110 million of cash held in escrow, respectively. Such cash has been classified as restricted cash and
reported as a component of other non-current assets in the Company s consolidated balance sheets.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist of investments which the Company expects to convert into cash within one year,
including time deposits which have a maturity greater than three months. Short-term investments are reported at cost,
which approximates market value. Cash inflows and outflows related to the sale and purchase of short-term
investments are classified as investing activities within the Company s consolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounts Receivable

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers that satisfy defined credit criteria.
Accounts receivable, net, as shown in the Company s consolidated balance sheets, is net of certain reserves and
allowances. These reserves and allowances consist of (a) reserves for returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns
and operational chargebacks and (b) allowances for doubtful accounts. These reserves and allowances are discussed in
further detail below.

A reserve for sales returns is determined based on an evaluation of current market conditions and historical returns
experience. Charges to increase the reserve are treated as reductions of revenue.

A reserve for trade discounts is determined based on open invoices where trade discounts have been extended to
customers, and charges to increase the reserve are treated as reductions of revenue.

Estimated end-of-season markdown charges are included as reductions of revenue. The related markdown provisions
are based on retail sales performance, seasonal negotiations with customers, historical deduction trends and an
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evaluation of current market conditions.

A reserve for operational chargebacks represents various deductions by customers relating to individual shipments.
Charges to increase this reserve, net of expected recoveries, are included as reductions of revenue. The reserve is
based on actual notifications of order fulfillment discrepancies and past experience.
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A rollforward of the activity in the Company s reserves for returns, discounts, end-of-season markdowns and
operational chargebacks is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

Beginning reserve balance $ 16l.1 $ 129.4 $ 107.5
Amount charged against revenue to increase reserve 480.2 496.7 388.4
Amount credited against customer accounts to decrease reserve (461.0) 473.4) (369.2)
Foreign currency translation 9.9 8.4 2.7
Ending reserve balance $ 1704 $ 161.1 $ 129.4

An allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through analysis of periodic aging of accounts receivable,
assessments of collectibility based on an evaluation of historic and anticipated trends, the financial condition of the
Company s customers, and an evaluation of the impact of economic conditions. A rollforward of the activity in the
Company s allowance for doubtful accounts is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

Beginning reserve balance $ 109 $ 87 $ 7.5
Amount charged to expense to increase reserve 13.9 2.6 1.9
Amount written off against customer accounts to decrease reserve 3.0) (1.6) (1.2)
Foreign currency translation (1.3) 1.2 0.5
Ending reserve balance $ 205 $ 109 § 8.7

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company sells its wholesale merchandise primarily to major department and specialty stores across the U.S.,
Europe and Asia and extends credit based on an evaluation of each customer s financial condition, usually without
requiring collateral. In its wholesale business, concentration of credit risk is relatively limited due to the large number
of customers and their dispersion across many geographic areas. However, the Company has seven key
department-store customers that generate significant sales volume. For Fiscal 2009, these customers in the aggregate
contributed approximately 50% of all wholesale revenues. Further, as of March 28, 2009, the Company s seven key
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department-store customers represented approximately 40% of gross accounts receivable.
Inventories

The Company holds inventory that is sold through wholesale distribution channels to major department stores and
specialty retail stores, including its own retail stores. The Company also holds retail inventory that is sold in its own
stores directly to consumers. Wholesale and retail inventories are stated at the lower of cost or estimated realizable
value. Cost for wholesale inventories is determined using the first-in, first-out ( FIFO ) method and cost for retail
inventories is determined on a moving-average cost basis.

The Company continually evaluates the composition of its inventories, assessing slow-turning product and all fashion
product. Estimated realizable value of inventory is determined based on an analysis of historical sales trends of the
Company s individual product lines, the impact of market trends and economic conditions, and the value of current
orders in-house relating to future sales of inventory. Estimates may differ from actual results due to quantity,

F-11

Table of Contents 90



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

quality and mix of products in inventory, consumer and retailer preferences and market conditions. The Company s
historical estimates of these costs and its provisions have not differed materially from actual results.

Reserves for inventory shrinkage, representing the risk over physical loss of inventory, are estimated based on
historical experience and are adjusted based upon physical inventory counts.

Investments

Investments in companies in which the Company has significant influence, but less than a controlling voting interest,
are accounted for using the equity method. This is generally presumed to exist when the Company owns between 20%
and 50% of the investee. However, as a matter of policy, if the Company had a greater than 50% ownership interest in
an investee and the minority shareholders held certain rights that allowed them to participate in the day-to-day
operations of the business, the Company would also generally use the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, only the Company s investment in and amounts due to and from the equity investee are
included in the consolidated balance sheets; only the Company s share of the investee s earnings (losses) is included in
the consolidated operating results; and only the dividends, cash distributions, loans or other cash received from the
investee and additional cash investments, loan repayments or other cash paid to the investee are included in the
consolidated cash flows.

Investments in companies in which the Company does not have a controlling interest, or is unable to exert significant
influence, are accounted for as available-for-sale investments and, if the investments are publicly traded and there are
no resale restrictions greater than one year, recorded at fair value. If resale restrictions greater than one year exist, or if
the investment is not publicly traded, the investment is accounted for at cost.

The Company evaluates investments held in unrealized loss positions for other-than-temporary impairment on a
quarterly basis. Such evaluation involves a variety of considerations, including assessments of risks and uncertainties
associated with general economic conditions and distinct conditions affecting specific issuers. Factors considered by
the Company include (i) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been below cost, (ii) the financial
condition, credit worthiness and near-term prospects of the issuer, (iii) the length of time to maturity, (iv) future
economic conditions and market forecasts and (v) the Company s intent and ability to retain its investment for a period
of time sufficient to allow for recovery of market value. The Company has not recognized any significant
other-than-temporary impairment charges in any of the fiscal years presented.

Equity-method Investments

The Company s investments include a joint venture named the Ralph Lauren Watch and Jewelry Company, S.A.R.L.
(the RL Watch Company ), formed with Financiere Richemont SA ( Richemont ), the Swiss Luxury Goods Group, in
March 2007. The joint venture is a Swiss corporation, whose purpose is to design, develop, manufacture, sell and
distribute luxury watches and fine jewelry through Ralph Lauren boutiques, as well as through fine independent

jewelry and luxury watch retailers throughout the world. The Company accounts for its 50% interest in the RL Watch
Company under the equity method of accounting, and such investment is classified in other non-current assets in the
consolidated balance sheets. Royalty payments due to the Company under the related license agreement for use of
certain of the Company s trademarks will be reflected as licensing revenue within the consolidated statement of
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operations. The RL Watch Company commenced operations during the first quarter of Fiscal 2008 and products were
introduced in January 2009.

Available-for-sale Investments

Investments also consisted of auction rate securities at a fair value of $2.3 million as of March 28, 2009 and
$14.5 million as of March 29, 2008. Auction rate securities have characteristics similar to short-term investments
because, at pre-determined short-term intervals, there is a new auction process at which the interest rates for these

securities are reset to current interest rates. At the end of such periods, the Company chooses to either roll over its
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holdings or seeks to redeem the investments for cash. Notwithstanding these short-term characteristics, the Company
has classified these securities as non-current within other assets in its consolidated balance sheet as current market
conditions call into question its ability to redeem these investments for cash within the next twelve months. Auction
rate securities are categorized as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses
are classified as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the Company s consolidated
balance sheets, and related realized gains or losses are classified as a component of interest and other income, net, in
the Company s consolidated statements of operations. Cash inflows and outflows related to the sale and purchase of
investments are classified as investing activities in the Company s consolidated statements of cash flows.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets, which range from three to seven
years for furniture, fixtures, computer software and computer equipment; from three to ten years for machinery and
equipment; and from ten to forty years for buildings and improvements. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the respective assets or the life of the lease.

Property and equipment, along with other long-lived assets, are evaluated for impairment periodically whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their related carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance
with FAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ( FAS 144 ). In evaluating
long-lived assets for recoverability, including finite-lived intangibles as described below, the Company uses its best
estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. To the extent
that estimated future undiscounted net cash flows attributable to the asset are less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized equal to the difference between the carrying value of such asset and its fair value.
Assets to be disposed of and for which there is a committed plan of disposal are reported at the lower of carrying
value or fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets ( FAS 142 ). At acquisition, the Company estimates and records the fair value of purchased
intangible assets, which primarily consist of license agreements, customer relationships, non-compete agreements and
order backlog. The fair value of these intangible assets is estimated based on management s assessment, considering
independent third party appraisals, when necessary. The excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Under FAS 142, goodwill, including any goodwill included in the carrying
value of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting, and certain other intangible assets deemed
to have indefinite useful lives are not amortized. Rather, goodwill and such indefinite-lived intangible assets are
assessed for impairment at least annually based on comparisons of their respective fair values to their carrying values.
Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and, along with other
long-lived assets as noted above, are evaluated for impairment periodically whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their related carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with FAS 144. See
discussion of the Company s accounting policy for long-lived asset impairment as described earlier under the caption
Property and Equipment, Net.
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Officers Life Insurance Policies

The Company maintains several whole-life and certain split-dollar life insurance policies for select senior executives.
Whole-life policies are recorded at their cash-surrender value, and split-dollar policies are recorded at the lesser of
their cash-surrender value or aggregate premiums paid-to-date in the consolidated balance sheets. As of the end of
Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, amounts of approximately $33 million and $48 million, respectively,
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relating to officers life insurance policies held by the Company were classified within other non-current assets in the
consolidated balance sheets.

In May 2009, the Company liquidated all of its whole-life insurance policies held at cash-surrender value. As of the
end of Fiscal 2009, the related asset balance of approximately $16 million was classified within short-term
investments in the consolidated balance sheet.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset and liability method prescribed by FAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes ( FAS 109 ). Under this method, income taxes (i.e., deferred tax assets and liabilities, current taxes
payable/refunds receivable and tax expense) are recorded based on amounts refundable or payable in the current year
and include the results of any difference between US GAAP and tax reporting. Deferred income taxes reflect the tax
effect of certain net operating loss, capital loss and general business credit carryforwards and the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax
purposes, as determined under enacted tax laws and rates. The Company accounts for the financial effect of changes in
tax laws or rates in the period of enactment.

In addition, valuation allowances are established when management determines that it is more-likely-than-not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. Tax valuation allowances are analyzed periodically and
adjusted as events occur, or circumstances change, that warrant adjustments to those balances.

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes An
Interpretation of FAS No. 109 ( FIN 48 ). Upon the adoption of the provisions of FIN 48, the Company changed its
policy related to the accounting for income tax uncertainties. If the Company considers that a tax position is

more-likely-than-not of being sustained upon audit, based solely on the technical merits of the position, it recognizes
the tax benefit. The Company measures the tax benefit by determining the largest amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuming that the tax position is examined by the appropriate taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. These assessments can be complex and the Company
often obtains assistance from external advisors. To the extent that the Company s estimates change or the final tax
outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the income tax provision
in the period in which such determinations are made. If the initial assessment fails to result in the recognition of a tax
benefit, the Company regularly monitors its position and subsequently recognizes the tax benefit if (i) there are
changes in tax law or analogous case law that sufficiently raise the likelihood of prevailing on the technical merits of
the position to more-likely-than-not , (ii) the statute of limitations expires, or (iii) there is a completion of an audit
resulting in a settlement of that tax year with the appropriate agency. Uncertain tax positions are classified as current
only when the Company expects to pay cash within the next twelve months. Interest and penalties, if any, are recorded
within the provision for income taxes in the Company s consolidated statements of operations and are classified on the
consolidated balance sheets with the related liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

See Note 13 for further discussion of the Company s income taxes and the adoption of FIN 48.

Leases
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The Company leases certain facilities and equipment, including its retail stores. Such leasing arrangements are
accounted for under the provisions of FAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, and other related authoritative accounting
literature (collectively, FAS 13 ). Certain of the Company s leases contain renewal options, rent escalation clauses
and/or landlord incentives. Rent expense for noncancelable operating leases with scheduled rent increases and/or
landlord incentives is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, beginning with the effective lease
commencement date. The excess of straight-line rent expense over scheduled payment amounts and landlord

incentives is recorded as a deferred rent liability. As of the end of Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, deferred rent
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obligations of approximately $125 million and $112 million, respectively, were classified within other non-current
liabilities in the Company s consolidated balance sheets.

For leases in which the Company is involved with the construction of the building (generally on land owned by the
landlord), the Company accounts for the lease during the construction period under the provisions of EITF No. 97-10,

The Effect of Lessee Involvement in Asset Construction ( EITF 97-10 ). If the Company concludes that it has
substantively all of the risks of ownership during construction of a leased property and therefore is deemed the owner
of the project for accounting purposes, it records an asset and related financing obligation for the amount of total
project costs related to construction-in-progress and the pre-existing building. Once construction is complete, the
Company considers the requirements under FAS No. 98, Accounting for Leases: Sale-Leaseback Transactions
Involving Real Estate, Sales-Type Leases of Real Estate, Definition of Lease Term, and Initial Direct Costs of Direct
Financing Leases, for sale-leaseback treatment. If the arrangement does not qualify for sale-leaseback treatment, the
Company continues to amortize the financing obligation and depreciate the building over the lease term.

Derivatives and Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with FAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, and subsequent amendments (collectively, FAS 133 ). FAS 133 requires that all
derivative instruments be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. In addition, FAS 133 provides that, for
derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting, the effective portion of changes in the fair value are either

(a) offset against the changes in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through earnings or

(b) recognized in stockholders equity until the hedged item is recognized in earnings, depending on whether the
derivative is being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flows, respectively.

Each derivative instrument entered into by the Company which qualifies for hedge accounting is considered highly
effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure being hedged. For each derivative designated as a hedge,
the Company formally documents the risk management objective and strategy, including the identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item and the risk exposure, as well as how effectiveness is to be assessed
prospectively and retrospectively. To assess effectiveness, the Company uses non-statistical methods, including the
dollar-offset method, which compare the change in the fair value of the derivative to the change in the fair value or
cash flows of the hedged item. The extent to which a hedging instrument has been and is expected to continue to be
effective at achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows is assessed and documented by the Company at
least on a quarterly basis. Any ineffectiveness in hedging relationships is recognized immediately in earnings. If it is
determined that a derivative has not been highly effective, and will continue not to be highly effective at hedging the
designated exposure, hedge accounting is discontinued.

All undesignated hedges of the Company are entered into to hedge specific economic risks, such as foreign currency
exchange and interest rate risk. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading
purposes. Changes in fair value relating to undesignated derivative instruments are immediately recognized in
earnings.

As a result of the use of derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to the risk that counterparties to derivative

contracts will fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate the counterparty credit risk, the Company has a
policy of only entering into contracts with carefully selected financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and
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certain other financial factors, adhering to established limits for credit exposure. The Company s established policies
and procedures for mitigating credit risk on derivative transactions include continually reviewing and assessing the
creditworthiness of counterparties. As of March 28, 2009, the Company has approximately 48% of its derivative
instruments in asset positions placed with one creditworthy financial institution.

For cash flow reporting purposes, the Company classifies proceeds received or amounts paid upon the settlement of a
derivative instrument in the same manner as the related item being hedged.
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The carrying value of the Company s financial instruments approximates fair value, except for certain differences
relating to fixed-rate debt, investments in other entities accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
certain other financial instruments. However, other than differences in the fair value of fixed-rate debt as disclosed in
Note 14, these differences were not significant as of March 28, 2009 or March 29, 2008. The fair value of financial
instruments generally is determined by reference to fair market values resulting from the trading of the instruments on
a national securities exchange or an over-the-counter market. In cases where quoted market prices are not available,
fair value is based on estimates derived through the use of present value or other valuation techniques.

See Note 15 for further discussion of the Company s derivatives and financial instruments.
4. Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Fair Value Measurement

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( FAS 157 orthe Standard ). FAS 157
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date within an identified principal or most advantageous
market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with US GAAP and expands disclosures
regarding fair value measurements. The Company adopted the provisions of FAS 157 for all of its financial assets and
liabilities within the Standard s scope as of the beginning of Fiscal 2009 (March 30, 2008). FAS 157 will become
effective for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities of the Company within the scope of FAS 157 as of the beginning of
Fiscal 2010 (March 29, 2009). The adoption of the provisions of FAS 157 effective during Fiscal 2009 did not have a
significant impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect that the
provisions of FAS 157 to be adopted in Fiscal 2010 will have a material effect on its consolidated financial
statements. See Note 15 for further discussion on the impact of adoption on the Company s consolidated financial
statements.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The
Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of the beginning of Fiscal 2008 (April 1, 2007) and recorded a related
$62.5 million reduction in retained earnings as of April 1, 2007. See Note 13 for further discussion of the Company s
income taxes and the adoption of FIN 48.

Financial Statement Misstatements
In September 2006, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) staff issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current

Year Financial Statements ( SAB 108 ). SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity in practice surrounding
how public companies quantify and evaluate financial statement misstatements.
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Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized methods for quantifying and evaluating the effects of financial
statement misstatements: (i) the balance sheet ( iron curtain ) method and (i1) the income statement ( rollover ) method.
The iron curtain method quantifies a misstatement based on the effects of correcting the misstatement existing in the
balance sheet at the end of the reporting period. The rollover method quantifies a misstatement based on the amount of
the error originating in the current period income statement, including the reversing effect of prior year misstatements.
The use of the rollover method can lead to the accumulation of
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misstatements in the balance sheet. Prior to the adoption of SAB 108, the Company historically used the rollover
method for quantifying and evaluating identified financial statement misstatements.

By issuing SAB 108, the SEC staff established an approach that requires quantification and evaluation of financial
statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements under both the iron curtain and rollover methods.
This model is commonly referred to as a dual approach.

SAB 108 required companies to initially apply its provisions either by (i) restating prior financial statements as if the
dual approach had always been applied or (ii) recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the dual approach
as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of the current fiscal year, with an
offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings. The Company adopted the provisions of
SAB 108 in Fiscal 2007 and elected to record the effects of applying SAB 108 using the cumulative effect transition
method and, as such, recorded a $16.9 million reduction in retained earnings as of April 2, 2006. The following table
summarizes the effects of applying SAB 108 for each period in which the identified misstatement originated through
April 2, 2006:

Period in which

Misstatement
Originated®
Cumulative  Fiscal Year Adjustment
Prior to Ended Recorded as of
April 2, April 1, April 2,
2005 2006 2006
(millions)
Inventory® $ 93 $ $ (9.3)
Other non-current liabilities accrued ref® (3.5) 0.3 (3.2)
Other non-current assets  equity method investmentd) 2.1 0.2 (1.9)
Other non-current liabilities minority intereé) (1.0 (1.0)
Deferred income taxes(® 1.9 (3.4) (1.5)
Impact on net income and retained earnings $ 140 $ 29 $ (16.9)

@  The Company previously quantified these errors under the rollover method and concluded that they were
immaterial, individually and in the aggregate, to the Company s consolidated financial statements.

(b)  The Company historically did not eliminate certain intercompany profits on the transfer of inventory, which
resulted in a cumulative overstatement of its inventory by $5.0 million in years prior to Fiscal 2006. In addition,
the Company included $4.3 million of certain product development costs in its inventory in years prior to Fiscal
2006 that, in hindsight, were not considered to be capitalizable. To correct these misstatements, the Company
reduced inventory by $9.3 million as of April 2, 2006, with a corresponding pretax reduction in retained earnings.
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In connection with a specialized retail store construction project in one of its international locations, the Company
did not recognize rent expense upon taking possession of the leased property and commencing construction in
Fiscal 2005. To correct these misstatements, the Company recorded a $3.2 million net increase in its liability for
accrued rent as of April 2, 2006, with a corresponding pretax reduction in retained earnings.

The Company historically did not properly account for differences between its investment bases in certain
consolidated and unconsolidated investees and its share of the underlying equity of such investees. To correct
these misstatements, the Company reduced the carrying value of its equity method investment by $1.9 million and
increased its minority interest liability by $1.0 million as of April 2, 2006, with a corresponding pretax reduction
of $2.9 million in total to retained earnings.

As a result of the misstatements described above and $5.1 million of deferred tax balances that were not
supportable based on a subsequent analysis of underlying book-tax basis differences, the Company s provision for
income taxes was cumulatively overstated by $1.9 million in years prior to Fiscal 2006 and understated by

$3.4 million in Fiscal 2006. To correct these misstatements, the Company increased its net deferred income tax
liability by a total of $1.5 million as of April 2, 2006, with a corresponding decrease in retained earnings.
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Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ( FAS 123R ). FAS 123R supersedes both
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ( APB 25 ), which permitted
the use of the intrinsic-value method in accounting for stock-based compensation, and FAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by FAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and
Disclosure ( FAS 123 ), which allowed companies applying APB 25 to just disclose in their financial statements the pro
forma effect on net income from applying the fair-value method of accounting for stock-based compensation.

FAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees and non-employee directors to be expensed based on the

grant date fair value of the awards over the requisite service period. The Company adopted the provisions of

FAS 123R effective as of the beginning of Fiscal 2007 and recorded a related $42.7 million reclassification within
stockholders equity as of April 2, 2006. See Note 19 for further discussion of the Company s stock-based

compensation.

Other Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In March 2008, the FASB issued FAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

( FAS 161 ). FAS 161 amends FAS 133 to provide enhanced disclosure requirements surrounding how and why an
entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under

FAS 133 and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of FAS 161 as of the fourth quarter of
Fiscal 2009 (see Note 15). The adoption of FAS 161 did not have an impact on the Company s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141R, Business Combinations ( FAS 141R ), which replaces

FAS No. 141. FAS 141R was issued to create greater consistency in the accounting and financial reporting of business
combinations, resulting in more complete, comparable and relevant information for investors and other users of
financial statements. FAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination
recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, as well as the goodwill acquired. Significant changes from current practice
resulting from FAS 141R include the need for the acquirer to record 100% of all assets and liabilities of the acquired
business, including goodwill, generally at their fair values for all business combinations (whether partial, full or step
acquisitions); the need to recognize contingent consideration at its fair value on the acquisition date and, for certain
arrangements, to recognize changes in fair value in earnings until settlement; and the need to expense
acquisition-related transaction and restructuring costs rather than to treat them as part of the cost of the acquisition.
FAS 141R also establishes disclosure requirements to enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the
business combination. FAS 141R is effective for the Company as of the beginning of Fiscal 2010 and will be applied
prospectively to business combinations that close on or after March 29, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an
Amendment of ARB No. 51 ( FAS 160 ). FAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling
interests (previously referred to as minority interests ) in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary, to
ensure consistency with the requirements of FAS 141R. FAS 160 states that noncontrolling interests should be
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classified as a separate component of equity, and establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures
that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners.
FAS 160 is effective for the Company as of the beginning of Fiscal 2010 and its application is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an Amendment of FAS No. 115 ( FAS 159 ). FAS 159 permits companies to choose to measure,
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are
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not currently required to be measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value
option is elected will be recognized in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The Company did not elect the fair
value option for any of its financial assets or financial liabilities upon adoption of FAS 159 in the beginning of Fiscal
2009. Therefore, the initial application of FAS 159 did not have a material effect on the Company s consolidated
financial statements.

5. Acquisitions and Joint Ventures
Fiscal 2009 Transactions
Agreement to Acquire Southeast Asia Licensed Operations

In February 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with Dickson Concepts International Limited ( Dickson ) to
assume direct control of its Polo-branded licensed apparel businesses in Southeast Asia effective January 1, 2010 in
exchange for a payment of $20 million and certain other consideration. Dickson is currently the Company s licensee
for Polo-branded apparel in the Southeast Asia region, which is comprised of China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Malaysia,
the Philippines, Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand. In connection with this agreement, the Company entered into a
one-year extension of its underlying sub-license agreement with Dickson, which was originally scheduled to expire on
December 31, 2008. The transaction is subject to certain customary closing conditions. The Company expects to
account for this transaction as an asset purchase during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2010.

Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition

On August 1, 2008, in connection with the transition of the Polo-branded childrenswear and golf apparel businesses in
Japan from a licensed to a wholly owned operation, the Company acquired certain net assets (including inventory)

from Naigai Co. Ltd. ( Naigai ) in exchange for a payment of approximately ¥2.8 billion (approximately $26 million as
of the acquisition date) and certain other consideration (the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition ). The
Company funded the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition with available cash on-hand. Naigai was the
Company s licensee for childrenswear, golf apparel and hosiery under the Polo by Ralph Lauren and Ralph Lauren
brands in Japan. In conjunction with the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition, the Company also entered into
an additional 5-year licensing and design-related agreement with Naigai for Polo and Chaps-branded hosiery in Japan
and a transition services agreement for the provision of a variety of operational, human resources and information
systems-related services over a period of up to eighteen months from the date of the closing of the transaction.

The Company accounted for the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition as an asset purchase during the second
quarter of Fiscal 2009. Based on the results of valuation analyses performed, the Company allocated all of the
consideration exchanged in the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition to the net assets acquired in connection
with the transaction. No settlement loss associated with any pre-existing relationships was recognized. The acquisition
cost of $28 million (including transaction costs of approximately $2 million) has been allocated to the net assets
acquired based on their respective fair values as follows: inventory of $16 million; customer relationship intangible
asset of $13 million; and other net liabilities of $1 million.

The results of operations for the Polo-branded childrenswear and golf apparel businesses in Japan have been
consolidated in the Company s results of operations commencing August 2, 2008.

Table of Contents 105



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Fiscal 2008 Transactions
Japanese Business Acquisitions

On May 29, 2007, the Company acquired control of certain of its Japanese businesses that were formerly conducted
under licensed arrangements, consistent with the Company s long-term strategy of international
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expansion. In particular, the Company acquired approximately 77% of the outstanding shares of Impact 21 that it did
not previously own in a cash tender offer (the Impact 21 Acquisition ), thereby increasing its ownership in Impact 21
from approximately 20% to approximately 97%. Impact 21 previously conducted the Company s men s, women s and
jeans apparel and accessories business in Japan under a pre-existing, sub-license arrangement. In addition, the

Company acquired the remaining 50% interest in PRL Japan, which holds the master license to conduct Polo s

business in Japan, from Onward Kashiyama and Seibu (the PRL Japan Minority Interest Acquisition ). Collectively,
the Impact 21 Acquisition and the PRL Japan Minority Interest Acquisition are herein referred to as the Japanese
Business Acquisitions.

The purchase price initially paid in connection with the Japanese Business Acquisitions was approximately

$360 million, including transaction costs of approximately $12 million. In February 2008, the Company acquired
approximately 1% of the remaining Impact 21 shares outstanding at an aggregate cost of $5 million. During the first
quarter of Fiscal 2009, the Company acquired the remaining 2% of Impact 21 shares outstanding at an aggregate cost
of approximately $9 million and completed the process of acquiring the remaining outstanding shares not exchanged
as of the close of the tender offer period (the minority squeeze-out ). As a result of these transactions, Impact 21 is a
100%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Company funded the Japanese Business Acquisitions with available cash on-hand and ¥20.5 billion of borrowings
under a one-year term loan agreement pursuant to an amendment and restatement to the Company s existing credit
facility. The Company repaid the borrowing by its maturity date on May 22, 2008 using $196.8 million of Impact 21 s
cash on-hand acquired as part of the acquisition.

Based on the results of valuation analyses performed, the Company allocated all of the consideration exchanged to the
purchase of the Japanese businesses. The acquisition cost of approximately $374 million has been allocated to the net
assets acquired based on their respective fair values as follows: cash of $189 million; trade receivables of $26 million;
inventory of $38 million; finite-lived intangible assets of $75 million (consisting of the re-acquired licenses of

$21 million and customer relationships of $54 million); non-tax-deductible goodwill of $140 million; assumed
pension liabilities of $5 million; net deferred tax liabilities of $31 million; and other net liabilities of $58 million.

The results of operations for Impact 21, which were previously accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
have been consolidated in the Company s results of operations commencing April 1, 2007. Accordingly, the Company
recorded within minority interest expense the amount of Impact 21 s net income allocable to the holders of the
approximate 80% of the Impact 21 shares not owned by the Company prior to the closing date of the tender offer. The
results of operations for PRL Japan had already been consolidated by the Company in all prior periods.

Acquisition of Small Leathergoods Business

On April 13, 2007, the Company acquired from Kellwood Company ( Kellwood ) substantially all of the assets of New
Campaign, Inc., the Company s licensee for men s and women s belts and other small leather goods under the Ralph
Lauren, Lauren and Chaps brands in the U.S. (the Small Leathergoods Business Acquisition ). The assets acquired
from Kellwood are operated under the name of Polo Ralph Lauren Leathergoods and allowed the Company to further
expand its accessories business. The acquisition cost was $10.4 million.
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The Company determined that the terms of the pre-existing licensing relationship were reflective of market. As such,
the Company allocated all of the consideration exchanged to the Small Leathergoods Business Acquisition and no
settlement gain or loss was recognized in connection with the transaction. The results of operations for the Polo Ralph
Lauren Leathergoods business have been consolidated in the Company s results of operations commencing April 1,
2007. In addition, the acquisition cost has been allocated as follows: inventory of $7.0 million; finite-lived intangible
assets of $2.1 million (consisting of the re-acquired license of $1.3 million, customer
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relationships of $0.7 million and order backlog of $0.1 million); other net assets of $0.7 million; and tax-deductible
goodwill of $0.6 million.

Formation of Ralph Lauren Watch and Jewelry Joint Venture

In March 2007, the Company formed a joint venture with Richemont to design, develop, manufacture, sell and
distribute luxury watches and fine jewelry. See Note 3 for further discussion of the joint venture.

Fiscal 2007 Transactions
Acquisition of RL Media Minority Interest

On March 28, 2007, the Company acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in RL Media formerly held by NBC
(37.5%) and Value Vision (12.5%) (the RL Media Minority Interest Acquisition ). RL Media conducts the Company s
e-commerce initiatives through the RalphLauren.com and Rugby.com internet sites. The results of operations for RL
Media have already been consolidated by the Company as described further in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. The acquisition cost was $175 million.

The Company evaluated the terms of all significant pre-existing relationships between itself and RL Media to
determine if a settlement of the pre-existing relationships existed. In addition, valuation analyses of RL Media were
performed. Based on these analyses, as well as the rights and obligations of the parties under the RL Media
partnership agreement, the Company determined that all of the consideration exchanged should be allocated to the
acquisition of the RL Media minority interest. Accordingly, no settlement gain or loss was recognized in connection
with this transaction.

The excess of the acquisition cost over the pre-existing minority interest liability of $33 million has been allocated as
follows: inventory of $8 million; finite-lived intangible assets of $58 million (consisting of the re-acquired license of
$56 million and customer list of $2 million); and tax-deductible goodwill of $76 million.

Supplemental Pro Forma Information

There were no acquisitions during Fiscal 2009 that had a material effect on the Company s financial position and
results of operations, and would have warranted the disclosure of related supplemental pro forma information.
However, summarized below is certain supplemental pro forma information related to the Company s significant
acquisitions that occurred during Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007.

The following unaudited condensed pro forma information (herein referred to as the pro forma information ) assumes
the Japanese Business Acquisitions, the RL Media Minority Interest Acquisition and the Small Leathergoods Business
Acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 for the applicable fiscal years presented.
The pro forma information has been prepared for comparative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
actual results that would have been attained had the acquisitions occurred as of the beginning of the fiscal years
presented, nor is it indicative of the Company s future results. Furthermore, the unaudited pro forma information does
not reflect management s estimate of any revenue-enhancing opportunities nor anticipated cost savings that may occur
as a result of the integration and consolidation of the acquisitions.
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The pro forma information set forth below reflects nonrecurring charges related to (a) the amortization of the
write-ups to fair value of inventory included within cost of goods sold as part of the preliminary purchase price
allocations, which were fully recognized within six months of each respective acquisition date; (b) the amortization of
the write-up to fair value of the acquired licenses as part of the preliminary purchase price allocation for the Japanese
Business Acquisitions, which was fully amortized within nine months of the acquisition date; and (c) the write-off of
foreign currency option contracts entered into to manage certain foreign currency exposures associated with the
Japanese Business Acquisitions which expired unexercised during the first quarter of Fiscal 2008. These
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charges included in the Company s pro forma results were approximately $47 million for Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007,
respectively.

Historical Pro Forma (unaudited)
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 31, March 29, March 31,
2008 2007 2008 2007
(millions, except per share data)
Net revenues $ 4,880.1 $ 42954 $ 4,880.1 $ 45820
Gross profit 2,638.1 2,336.2 2,638.1 2,413.4
Amortization of intangible assets 47.2) (15.6) (47.8) (50.5)
Operating income 653.4 652.6 652.8 636.5
Net income 419.8 400.9 419.8 383.7
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 4.10 $ 3.84 $ 4.10 $ 3.68
Diluted $ 3.99 $ 3.73 $ 3.99 $ 3.57

6. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008
(millions)
Raw materials $ 54 $ 6.7
Work-in-process 1.7 1.7
Finished goods 518.0 506.5
Total inventory $ 5251 $ 514.9

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following:

March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)
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Land and improvements $ 9.9 $ 9.9
Buildings and improvements 112.6 97.4
Furniture and fixtures 491.1 464.0
Machinery and equipment 305.0 276.9
Leasehold improvements 643.3 604.6
Construction in progress 49.6 56.7
1,611.5 1,509.5
Less: accumulated depreciation (959.9) (799.6)
Property and equipment, net $ 651.6 $ 709.9

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As discussed in Note 3, the Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with FAS 142.
Under FAS 142, goodwill and certain other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives are not
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amortized. Rather, goodwill and such indefinite-lived intangible assets are subject to annual impairment testing.
Finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives. Based on the results
of the Company s annual impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal
2008 and Fiscal 2007, no impairment charges were deemed necessary.

Goodwill

The following analysis details the changes in goodwill for each reportable segment during Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal
2008:

Wholesale Retail Licensing Total
(millions)

Balance at March 31, 2007 $ 5189 $ 155.1 $116.5 $ 790.5
Acquisition-related activity® 122.5 3.9 16.8 1354
Other adjustments®) 434 0.9 4.9 49.2
Balance at March 29, 2008 $ 684.8 $ 152.1 $ 138.2 $975.1
Acquisition-related activity(® 4.8 4.8
Other adjustments®) (15.5) (1.3) 33 (13.5)
Balance at March 28, 2009 $ 674.1 $ 150.8 $141.5 $ 966.4

@  Fiscal 2009 acquisition-related activity primarily includes the minority squeeze-out related to the Japanese
Business Acquisitions. Fiscal 2008 acquisition-related activity primarily includes the Japanese Business
Acquisitions and the Small Leathergoods Business Acquisition, as well as other adjustments related to revisions
in the estimated purchase price allocation of the RL. Media Minority Interest Acquisition. See Note 5 for further
discussion of the Company s acquisitions.

(b)  Other adjustments principally include changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:

March 28, 2009 March 29, 2008
Gross Gross
Carrying Accum. Carrying Accum.
Amount Amort. Net Amount Amort. Net
(millions)
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Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Re-acquired licensed trademarks $ 2260 $ (587 $ 1673 $ 2235 $ (475 $ 176.0
Customer relationships/lists 206.7 (34.1) 172.6 186.7 (22.4) 164.3
Other 7.4 (7.1) 0.3 7.4 (7.1) 0.3
Total intangible assets subject to amortization 440.1 (99.9) 340.2 417.6 (77.0) 340.6
Intangible assets not subject to amortization:

Trademarks and brands 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7
Total intangible assets $ 4488 $ (99.9) $ 3489 $ 4263 $ (77.0) $ 3493
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Amortization

Based on the amount of intangible assets subject to amortization as of March 28, 2009, the expected amortization for
each of the next five fiscal years and thereafter is as follows:

Amortization

Expense

(millions)
Fiscal 2010 $ 20.4
Fiscal 2011 20.1
Fiscal 2012 19.5
Fiscal 2013 19.1
Fiscal 2014 19.1
Fiscal 2015 and thereafter 242.0
Total $ 340.2

The expected future amortization expense above reflects weighted-average estimated useful lives of 20.3 years for
re-acquired licensed trademarks, 16.5 years for customer relationships/lists and 18.3 years for the Company s
finite-lived intangible assets in total.

9. Other Non-Current Assets

Other non-current assets consist of the following:

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008
(millions)
Equity-method investments $ 4.2 $ 24
Officers life insurance policies 329 48.3
Restricted cash and other non-current investments 101.1 138.6
Other non-current assets 91.9 131.5
Total other non-current assets $ 230.1 $ 320.8

10. Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:
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March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)
Accrued operating expenses $ 2219 $ 243.8
Accrued payroll and benefits 110.7 88.2
Accrued inventory 44.6 42.0
Deferred income 459 50.1
Other 49.2 43.6
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 4723 $ 467.7
F-24
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Other non-current liabilities consist of the following:

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008
(millions)
Capital lease obligations $ 76.6 $ 73.2
Deferred rent obligations 124.7 112.3
Deferred income 145.6 168.8
Minority interest 5.5
Other 39.2 79.4
Total other non-current liabilities $ 386.1 $ 439.2

11. Impairments of Assets

Property and equipment, along with other long-lived assets, are evaluated for impairment periodically whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their related carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance
with FAS 144. In evaluating long-lived assets for recoverability, the Company uses its best estimate of future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. To the extent that estimated future
undiscounted net cash flows attributable to the asset are less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized equal to the difference between the carrying value of such asset and its fair value.

Fiscal 2009 Impairment

During Fiscal 2009, the Company recorded total non-cash impairment charges of $55.4 million to reduce the net
carrying value of certain long-lived assets to their estimated fair value, which was determined based on discounted
expected cash flows. Total Fiscal 2009 impairment charges were comprised of $7.2 million recorded during the
second quarter and $48.2 million recorded during the fourth quarter.

Total Fiscal 2009 impairment charges included a $52.0 million write-down of Retail store assets and a $3.4 million
write-down of certain capitalized software costs (primarily in the Wholesale segment) that were determined to no
longer be used over the intended service period. The Retail store asset impairment was associated with
lower-than-expected operating performance for the fiscal year for certain Ralph Lauren, Club Monaco and Rugby
full-price stores primarily located in the U.S. due in part to the significant contraction in consumer spending
experienced during the latter half of the fiscal year and which is expected to continue to negatively impact such stores
future operating performance.

Fiscal 2008 Impairment

During Fiscal 2008, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $5.0 million to reduce the carrying value
of certain long-lived assets in its Retail segment to their estimated fair value. These impairment charges were
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primarily recorded as a result of lower-than-expected operating cash flow performance for certain stores that, along
with projections of future performance, indicated that the carrying values of the related fixed assets were not
recoverable.

No impairment charges were recorded in Fiscal 2007.

12. Restructuring

The Company has recorded restructuring liabilities in recent years relating to various cost-savings initiatives, as well
as certain of its acquisitions. Through Fiscal 2009, in accordance with US GAAP, restructuring costs incurred in
connection with acquisitions were capitalized as part of the purchase accounting for the transaction. Such

acquisition-related restructuring costs were not material in any period. Liabilities for costs associated with
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non-acquisition-related restructuring initiatives are expensed and initially measured at fair value when incurred in
accordance with US GAAP. A description of the nature of significant non-acquisition-related restructuring activities
and related costs is presented below.

Fiscal 2009 Restructuring

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2009, the Company initiated a restructuring plan designed to better align its cost
base with the slowdown in consumer spending negatively affecting sales and operating margins and to improve

overall operating effectiveness (the Fiscal 2009 Restructuring Plan ). The Fiscal 2009 Restructuring Plan included the
termination of approximately 500 employees and the closure of certain underperforming retail stores.

In connection with the Fiscal 2009 Restructuring Plan, the Company recorded $20.8 million in restructuring charges
during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2009. A summary of the activity in the related liability is as follows:

Severance Lease
and
Benefits Termination Other
Costs Costs Costs®@ Total
(millions)

Balance at March 29, 2008 $ $ $ $
Additions charged to expense 13.4 5.8 1.6 20.8
Cash payments charged against reserve (0.8) 0.9 (1.7)
Non-cash adjustments (1.6) (1.6)
Balance at March 28, 2009 $ 12.6 $ 49 $ $ 175

@  Primarily related to write-downs of certain fixed assets.

Payments related to severance and benefits and lease termination costs are expected to be paid in full primarily by the
end of Fiscal 2010.

In addition to those restructuring charges incurred in connection with the Fiscal 2009 Restructuring Plan implemented
during the fourth quarter as discussed above, the Company recognized $2.8 million of other restructuring charges
earlier in the fiscal year, primarily related to severance costs associated with the transition of certain sourcing and
production facilities in Southeast Asia during Fiscal 2009.

There were no significant restructuring charges recognized by the Company during Fiscal 2008.

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring
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During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2006, the Company initiated a plan to restructure its Club Monaco retail business.
In particular, this plan consisted of the closure of all five Club Monaco factory stores and the intention to dispose of
by sale or closure all eight of the Caban Concept Stores (collectively, the Club Monaco Restructuring Plan ). In
connection with this plan, during Fiscal 2007 the Company ultimately decided to close all of the Caban Concept
Stores and recognized $4.0 million of associated restructuring charges, primarily relating to lease termination costs.
The remaining liability under the plan was $0.9 million as of March 28, 2009.

Additionally, the Company recognized $0.6 million of other restructuring charges primarily related to severance costs
associated with the transition of certain sourcing and production functions from Colombia to the U.S. during Fiscal
2007.
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13. Income Taxes
Taxes on Income

Domestic and foreign pretax income are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Domestic $ 351.1 $ 4737 $  508.6
Foreign 236.4 168.4 134.7
Total income before provision for income taxes $ 5875 $ 6421 $ 6433
Current and deferred income taxes (tax benefits) provided are as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Current:
Federal® $ 126.6 $ 157.5 $ 250.7
State and local® 25.6 15.4 50.2
Foreign 64.4 57.1 53.9
216.6 230.0 354.8
Deferred:
Federal (15.3) 10.0 (99.2)
State and local (7.4) 3.9 (12.8)
Foreign (12.4) (21.6) 0.4)
(35.1) 7.7) (112.4)

Total provision for income taxes $ 1815 $ 2223 $ 242.4
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@ Excludes federal, state and local tax benefits of approximately $12 million in Fiscal 2009, $34 million in Fiscal
2008 and $33 million in Fiscal 2007 resulting from the exercise of employee stock options. In addition, excludes
federal, state and local tax benefits of $31 million for Fiscal 2007 primarily related to the repayment of the
approximate 227 million principal amount of 6.125% notes outstanding that were due on November 22, 2006,

from an original issuance of 275 million in 1999 (the 1999 Euro Debt ). Such amounts were credited to
stockholders equity.
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Tax Rate Reconciliation

The differences between income taxes expected at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35% and income taxes
provided are as set forth below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

Provision for income taxes at the U.S. federal statutory rate $ 205.6 $ 224.7 $ 225.1
Increase (decrease) due to:
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit 11.9 12.2 25.7
Foreign income taxed at different rates, net of U.S. foreign tax credits (40.1) (22.3) (11.2)
Other 4.1 7.7 2.8
Total provision for income taxes $ 181.5 $ 2223 $ 2424

The Company s effective tax rate is lower than the statutory rate principally as a result of the proportion of earnings
generated in lower taxed foreign jurisdictions versus the U.S.

Deferred Taxes

Significant components of the Company s net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008
(millions)

Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Receivable allowances and reserves $ 402 $ 30.2
Inventory basis difference 21.5 19.0
Other 36.4 25.6
Net operating losses and other tax attributed carryforwards 0.1 2.1
Valuation allowance (0.3)
Net current deferred tax assets (liabilities)® 08.2 76.6
Non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Property, plant and equipment 62.1 42.5
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Goodwill and other intangible assets (153.8) (142.0)
Net operating losses carryforwards 9.7 3.2
Cumulative translation adjustment and hedges 0.6 204
Deferred compensation 56.4 61.0
Deferred income 56.4 58.4
Unrecogized tax benefits 37.7 39.1
Other 16.7 10.2
Valuation allowance (5.6) (0.8)
Net non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities)® 80.2 92.0
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 1784 $ 168.6

(@ Net current deferred tax balance as of March 28, 2009 included current deferred tax liabilities of $3.6 million
included within accrued expenses and other in the consolidated balance sheet.

(b)  Net non-current deferred tax balances as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008 were comprised of non-current
deferred tax assets of $102.8 million and $116.9 million, respectively, included within deferred tax assets, and
non-current deferred tax liabilities of $22.6 million and $24.9 million, respectively, included within other
non-current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The Company has available federal, state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $0.5 million, $6.8 million
and $13.8 million, respectively, for tax purposes to offset future taxable income. The net operating loss carryforwards
expire beginning in Fiscal 2010. The utilization of the federal net operating loss carryforwards is subject to the
limitations of Internal Revenue Code Section 382, which applies following certain changes in ownership of the entity
generating the loss carryforward.

Also, the Company has available state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $7.9 million and $11.0 million,
respectively, for which no net deferred tax asset has been recognized. A full valuation allowance has been recorded
since management does not believe that the Company will more likely than not be able to utilize these carryforwards
to offset future taxable income. Subsequent recognition of these deferred tax assets would result in an income tax
benefit in the year of such recognition. The valuation allowance increased by $4.5 million in Fiscal 2009 as a result of
the inability to utilize certain foreign net operating loss carryforwards.

Provision has not been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxes on $841.4 million of undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries. Those earnings have been and are expected to continue to be reinvested. These earnings could
become subject to tax if they were remitted as dividends, if foreign earnings were lent to Polo Ralph Lauren
Corporation ( PRLC ), a subsidiary or a U.S. affiliate of PRLC, or if the stock of the subsidiaries were sold.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability with respect to such earnings is not practical.
Management believes that the amount of the additional taxes that might be payable on the earnings of foreign
subsidiaries, if remitted, would be partially offset by U.S. foreign tax credits.

Uncertain Income Tax Benefits
Impact of FIN 48 Adoption

As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Company recognized a $62.5 million reduction in retained earnings as the
cumulative effect to adjust its net liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of April 1, 2007. This adjustment consisted
of a $99.9 million increase to the Company s liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits, offset in part by a $37.4 million
increase to the Company s deferred tax assets principally representing the value of future tax benefits that could be
realized at the U.S. federal level if the related liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits at the state and local levels
ultimately are required to be settled. The total balance of unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties,
was $173.8 million as of April 1, 2007.

The Company classifies interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of its provision for income
taxes. Accordingly, included in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits was a liability for interest and penalties in

the amount of $45.7 million as of April 1, 2007.
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Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 Activity

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties,
for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)

Unrecognized tax benefits beginning balance $ 1175 $ 128.1
Additions related to current period tax positions 54 11.5
Additions related to prior periods tax positions 19.4 15.5
Reductions related to prior periods tax positions (17.8) (22.2)
Reductions related to settlements with taxing authorities (5.8) (10.2)
Reductions related to expiration of statutes of limitations (5.2)
Additions (reductions) charged to foreign currency translation (5.0
Unrecognized tax benefits ending balance $ 113.7 $ 117.5

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)

Accrued interest and penalties beginning balance $ 480 $ 45.7
Additions (reductions) charged to expense (0.8) 7.6
Reductions related to settlements with taxing authorities 5.1 (5.1
Reductions related to expiration of statutes of limitations (1.4)
Additions (reductions) charged to foreign currency translation (1.0) 1.2
Accrued interest and penalties ending balance $ 411 $ 48.0

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, was $154.8 million as of March 28,
2009 and was included within non-current liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the consolidated balance sheet.
The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, was $165.5 million as of March 29,
2008, of which $10.3 was included within accrued expenses and other and $155.2 million was included within

Table of Contents 126



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

non-current liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the consolidated balance sheet. The total amount of unrecognized
tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the Company s effective tax rate was $117.1 million as of March 28, 2009
and $123.6 million as of March 29, 2008.

Future Changes in Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits relating to the Company s tax positions is subject to change based on
future events including, but not limited to, the settlements of ongoing audits and/or the expiration of applicable
statutes of limitations. Although the outcomes and timing of such events are highly uncertain, it is reasonably possible
that the balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties, could potentially be reduced by
up to approximately $25 million during the next 12 months. However, changes in the occurrence, expected outcomes
and timing of those events could cause the Company s current estimate to change materially in the future.
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The Company files tax returns in the U.S. federal and various state, local and foreign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions for those tax returns, the Company is no longer subject to examinations by the relevant tax authorities for
years prior to Fiscal 2000.
14. Debt

Debt consists of the following:

March 28, March 29,

2009 2008
(millions)

Revolving credit facility $ $

1.2% Yen-denominated term loan due May 2008 206.4
4.5% Euro-denominated notes due October 2013 406.4 472.8
Total debt 406.4 679.2
Less: current maturities of debt (206.4)
Total long-term debt $ 406.4 $ 472.8

Euro Debt

The Company has outstanding approximately 300 million principal amount of 4.5% notes due October 4, 2013 (the
Euro Debt ). The Company has the option to redeem all of the Euro Debt at any time at a redemption price equal to the

principal amount plus a premium. The Company also has the option to redeem all of the Euro Debt at any time at par

plus accrued interest in the event of certain developments involving U.S. tax law. Partial redemption of the Euro Debt

is not permitted in either instance. In the event of a change of control of the Company, each holder of the Euro Debt

has the option to require the Company to redeem the Euro Debt at its principal amount plus accrued interest. The

indenture governing the Euro Debt (the Indenture ) contains certain limited covenants that restrict the Company s

ability, subject to specified exceptions, to incur liens or enter into a sale and leaseback transaction for any principal

property. The Indenture does not contain any financial covenants.

The Company may from time to time repurchase all or a portion of its Euro Debt in the open market, via tender offer
or otherwise.

Refer to Note 15 for discussion of the designation of the Company s Euro Debt as a hedge of its net investment in
certain of its European subsidiaries.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan
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The Company has a credit facility that provides for a $450 million unsecured revolving line of credit through

November 2011 (the Credit Facility ). The Credit Facility also is used to support the issuance of letters of credit. As of
March 28, 2009, there were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility, and the Company was contingently
liable for $13.7 million of outstanding letters of credit (primarily relating to inventory purchase commitments). The
Company has the ability to expand its borrowing availability to $600 million subject to the agreement of one or more
new or existing lenders under the facility to increase their commitments. There are no mandatory reductions in
borrowing ability throughout the term of the Credit Facility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company s option, either at (a) a base rate determined by
reference to the higher of (i) the prime commercial lending rate of JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. in effect from time to
time and (ii) the weighted-average overnight Federal funds rate (as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York) plus 50 basis points or (b) a LIBOR rate in effect from time to time, as adjusted for the Federal Reserve Board s
Euro currency liabilities maximum reserve percentage plus a margin defined in the Credit Facility
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( the applicable margin ). The applicable margin of 35 basis points is subject to adjustment based on the Company s
credit ratings.

In addition to paying interest on any outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility, the Company is required to pay
a commitment fee to the lenders under the Credit Facility in respect of the unutilized commitments. The commitment
fee rate of 8 basis points under the terms of the Credit Facility also is subject to adjustment based on the Company s
credit ratings.

The Credit Facility contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict the Company s ability, subject to
specified exceptions, to incur additional debt; incur liens and contingent liabilities; sell or dispose of assets, including
equity interests; merge with or acquire other companies; liquidate or dissolve itself; engage in businesses that are not
in a related line of business; make loans, advances or guarantees; engage in transactions with affiliates; and make
investments. The Credit Facility also requires the Company to maintain a maximum ratio of Adjusted Debt to
Consolidated EBITDAR (the leverage ratio ) of no greater than 3.75 as of the date of measurement for four
consecutive quarters. Adjusted Debt is defined generally as consolidated debt outstanding plus 8 times consolidated
rent expense for the last twelve months. EBITDAR is defined generally as consolidated net income plus (i) income tax
expense, (ii) net interest expense, (iii) depreciation and amortization expense and (iv) consolidated rent expense. As of
March 28, 2009, no Event of Default (as such term is defined pursuant to the Credit Facility) has occurred under the
Company s Credit Facility.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Credit Facility, the lenders may cease making loans, terminate
the Credit Facility, and declare all amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable. The Credit Facility
specifies a number of events of default (many of which are subject to applicable grace periods), including, among
others, the failure to make timely principal and interest payments or to satisfy the covenants, including the financial
covenant described above. Additionally, the Credit Facility provides that an Event of Default will occur if Mr. Ralph
Lauren, the Company s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and related entities controlled by Mr. Lauren fail to
maintain a specified minimum percentage of the voting power of the Company s common stock.

The Credit Facility was amended and restated as of May 22, 2007 to provide for the addition of a ¥20.5 billion loan
(the Term Loan ). The Term Loan was made to Polo JP Acqui B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
was guaranteed by the Company, as well as the other subsidiaries of the Company which currently guarantee the
Credit Facility. The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to finance the Japanese Business Acquisitions. Borrowings
under the Term Loan bore interest at a fixed rate of 1.2%. The Company repaid the borrowing by its maturity date on
May 22, 2008 using $196.8 million of Impact 21 s cash on-hand acquired as part of the acquisition. See Note 5 for
further discussion of the Japanese Business Acquisitions.

Fair Value of Debt

Based on the prevailing level of market interest rates as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, the carrying value of
the Company s Euro Debt exceeded its fair value by approximately $86 million and $50 million, respectively. As of
March 31, 2008, the carrying value of the Company s Term Loan approximated its fair value. Unrealized gains or

losses on debt do not result in the realization or expenditure of cash, unless the debt is retired prior to its maturity.

15. Financial Instruments
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Fair Value Measurement

FAS 157 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The determination of
the applicable level within the hierarchy of a particular asset or liability depends on the inputs
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used in valuation as of the measurement date, notably the extent to which the inputs are market-based (observable) or
internally derived (unobservable). The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology based on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets for substantially the full term of the financial instrument; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active for substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and
model-derived valuations whose inputs or significant value drivers are observable.

Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology based on unobservable prices or valuation techniques that are
significant to the fair value measurement.

A financial instrument s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table summarizes the Company s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:

March 28, 2009
(millions)

Financial assets carried at fair value:
Derivative financial instruments $ 27.7
Auction rate securities 2.3
Total $ 30.0
Financial liabilities carried at fair value:
Derivative financial instruments $ 3.4
Total $ 34

(@ Based on Level 2 measurements.

Derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges are recorded at fair value in the Company s
consolidated balance sheets and, to the extent these instruments are highly effective at reducing the risk associated
with the exposure being hedged, the related unrealized gains or losses are deferred in stockholders equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. The Company s derivative financial instruments are valued
using a pricing model, primarily based on market observable external inputs including forward and spot rates for

Table of Contents 132



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

foreign currencies, which considers the impact of the Company s own credit risk, if any. The Company mitigates the
impact of counterparty credit risk by entering into contracts with select financial institutions based on credit ratings
and other factors, adhering to established limits for credit exposure and continually assessing the creditworthiness of
counterparties. Changes in counterparty credit risk are considered in the valuation of derivative financial instruments.
The Company s derivative financial instruments have been classified as Level 2 assets or liabilities as of March 28,
2009.

The Company s auction rate securities are classified as available-for-sale securities and are recorded at fair value in the
Company s consolidated balance sheets, with unrealized gains and losses deferred in stockholders equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Third-party pricing institutions may value auction rate
securities at par, which may not necessarily reflect prices that would be obtained in the current market. When quoted
market prices are unobservable, fair value is estimated based on a number of known factors and external pricing data,
including known maturity dates, the coupon rate based upon the most recent reset market clearing rate, the price/yield
representing the average rate of recently successful traded securities, and the total
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principal balance of each security. Auction rate securities have been classified as Level 2 assets as of March 28, 2009.
Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable are recorded at carrying value, which
approximates fair value. Restricted cash is reported at carrying value. The Company s Euro Debt, which is adjusted for
foreign currency fluctuations, is also reported at carrying value.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company primarily has exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates relating to certain anticipated
cash flows from its international operations and possible declines in the fair value of reported net assets of certain of
its foreign operations, as well as changes in the fair value of its fixed-rate debt relating to changes in interest rates.

Consequently, the Company periodically uses derivative financial instruments to manage such risks.

The following tables summarize the Company s outstanding derivative instruments and the related impact on its
consolidated financial statements as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008:

Notional Amounts Derivative Assets Derivative (Liabilities)
Balance Balance Balance Balance
March 28, March 29, Sheet Fair  Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair
Derivative Instrument® 2009 2008 Line® Value Line® Value Line® Value Line® Value
March 29,
March 28, 2009 2008 March 28, 2009 March 29, 2008
(millions)
Designated Hedges:
FC Inventory purchases $ 2394 $ 257.0 PP $ 225 PP $ 14 AE $ (0.7 AE $ (21.9)
FC I/C royalty payments 89.9 14.2 (e) 3.9 AE (1.2) AE (1.0)
FC Interest payments 17.9 19.2 PP 0.1 PP 1.9
FC I/C marketing
contributions 3.0 1.9 PP 0.1 AE 0.4)
FC  Operational
obligations 0.7 30.2 PP 0.1 PP 0.5
Net Investment Euro Debt  406.4 381.2 LTD (320.0)© LTD (423.0)©
Total Designated Hedges $ 757.3 $ 703.7 $ 26.6 $ 3.9 $ (322.3) $ (445.9)
Undesignated Hedges:
FC Inventory purchases $ 169 §$ 11.7 PP $ 05 $ AE $ (0.3) AE $ (0.3)
FC Forecasted sales 48.2 PP 1.7
FC  Othéd) 15.5 5.0 PP 0.6 AE (0.8) AE 0.4)
I'otal Undesignated
Hedges $ 324 $ 649 $ 1.1 $ 1.7 $ 1.1 $ (0.7
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T'otal Derivatives $ 789.7 $ 768.6 $ 277 $ 5.6 $ (3234) (446.6)

@ FC = Forward exchange contracts for the sale or purchase of foreign currencies; Euro Debt = 300 million
principal notes due October 2013.

(b) PP = Prepaid expenses and other; OA = Other assets; AE = Accrued expenses and other; LTD = Long-term debt.

© The Company s Euro Debt is reported at carrying value in the Company s consolidated balance sheets. The
carrying value of the Euro Debt was $406.4 as of March 28, 2009 and $472.8 million as of March 29, 2008.

@) Primarily related to forward foreign exchange contracts entered into in connection with the Company s Japanese
Business Acquisitions minority squeeze-out, as discussed in Note 5.

(®  $2.6 million included within PP and $1.3 million included within OA.
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Derivative Instrument®

Designated Cash Flow

Hedges:
FC Inventory purchases

FC 1/C royalty payments
FC Interest payments
FC 1I/C marketing
contributions

FC Operational obligations

Designated Hedge of Net
Investment:

Euro Debt

Total Designated Hedges

Derivative Instrument®

Undesignated Hedges:
FC Inventory purchases

FC Forecasted revenues
FC Othdp

Table of Contents

Gains (Losses) Gains

Recognized in
oCI®

Fiscal Years Ended

(Losses)

Reclassified from

AOCI® to

Earnings

Fiscal Years

Ended

March 28, March 29, March 28, March 29,

2009

$ 385
3.8
(1.2)
0.4)
0.5)

$ 402

$ 66.6

$ 106.8

$

$

$
$

2008 2009
(millions)

(25.5) $ (3.8)
(1.0) (1.0)
1.5 (0.7)
0.1 0.2)
0.5 0.4

(244) $ (5.3)

(73.8) $

(982) $ (5.3)

2008

$ (84
(1.0)

0.2

$ (74

$ (74

Gains (Losses)
Recognized in Earnings

Fiscal Years Ended
March
28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)
$ 0.5 $ 0.2)
1.0 1.6
(1.8) (1.5)

Location of Gains (Losses)
Reclassified from AOCI to Earnings

Cost of goods sold
Foreign currency gains (losses)
Foreign currency gains (losses)

Foreign currency gains (losses)

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

(c)

Location of Gains (Losses)
Recognized in Earnings

Foreign currency gains (losses)
Foreign currency gains (losses)
Foreign currency gains (losses)
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Total Undesignated Hedges $ 03 $ (0.1

@ FC = Forward exchange contracts for the sale or purchase of foreign currencies; Euro Debt = 300 million
principal notes due October 2013.

(b) ~ Accumulated other comprehensive income ( AOCI ), including the respective fiscal year s other comprehensive
income ( OCI ), is classified as a component of total stockholders equity.

© To the extent applicable, to be recognized as a gain (loss) on the sale or liquidation of the hedged net investment.

@) Primarily related to forward foreign exchange contracts entered into in connection with the Company s Japanese
Business Acquisitions minority squeeze-out, as discussed in Note 5.

Over the next twelve months, it is expected that approximately $23 million of net gains deferred in accumulated other
comprehensive income related to foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding as of March 28, 2009 will be
recognized in earnings. The Company recognized an aggregate net gain on foreign currency exchange contracts in
earnings of approximately $4 million for Fiscal 2007. The Company recorded within accumulated other
comprehensive income the translation effects of the Euro Debt to U.S. dollars, resulting in an aggregate loss of

$30.8 million for Fiscal 2007. No material gains or losses relating to ineffective hedges were recognized during any of
the fiscal years presented.

The following is a summary of the Company s risk management strategies and the effect of those strategies on the
consolidated financial statements.
F-35
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Foreign Currency Risk Management
Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Company enters into forward foreign currency exchange contracts as hedges to reduce its risk from exchange rate
fluctuations on inventory purchases, intercompany royalty payments made by certain of its international operations,
intercompany contributions made to fund certain marketing efforts of its international operations, interest payments
made in connection with outstanding debt, other foreign currency-denominated operational obligations including
payroll, rent, insurance and benefit payments, and foreign currency-denominated revenues. As part of its overall
strategy to manage the level of exposure to the risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily to
changes in the value of the Euro, the Japanese Yen, the Swiss Franc, and the British Pound Sterling, the Company
hedges a portion of its foreign currency exposures anticipated over the ensuing twelve-month to two-year periods. In
doing so, the Company uses foreign currency exchange forward contracts that generally have maturities of three
months to two years to provide continuing coverage throughout the hedging period.

The Company records its foreign currency exchange contracts at fair value in its consolidated balance sheets. Foreign
currency exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges at hedge inception are accounted for in accordance with
FAS 133. As such, to the extent these hedges are effective, the related gains (losses) are deferred in stockholders
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. These deferred gains (losses) are then recognized
in our consolidated statements of operations as follows:

Forecasted Inventory Purchases Recognized as part of the cost of the inventory being hedged within cost of
goods sold when the related inventory is sold.

Intercompany Royalty Payments and Marketing Contributions Recognized within foreign currency gains
(losses) in the period in which the related royalties or marketing contributions being hedged are received or
paid.

Operational Obligations Recognized primarily within SG&A expenses in the period in which the hedged
forecasted transaction affects earnings.

Interest Payments on Euro Debt Recognized within foreign currency gains (losses) in the period in which the
recorded liability impacts earnings due to foreign currency exchange remeasurement.

To the extent that any of these foreign currency exchange contracts are not considered to be perfectly effective in
offsetting the change in the value of the hedged item, any changes in fair value relating to the ineffective portion are
immediately recognized in earnings. If a hedge relationship is terminated, the change in fair value of the derivative
previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income is realized when the hedged item affects earnings
consistent with the original hedging strategy, unless the forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring in
which case the accumulated amount is immediately recognized in earnings. In addition, changes in fair value relating
to undesignated foreign currency exchange contracts are immediately recognized in earnings.

Hedge of a Net Investment in Certain European Subsidiaries
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The Company designated the entire principal amount of its outstanding Euro Debt as a hedge of its net investment in
certain of its European subsidiaries. As required by FAS 133, the changes in fair value of a derivative instrument or a
non-derivative financial instrument (such as debt) that is designated as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation are reported in the same manner as a translation adjustment under FAS No. 52, Foreign Currency
Translation, to the extent it is effective as a hedge. As such, changes in the fair value of the Euro Debt resulting from
changes in the Euro exchange rate have been, and continue to be, reported in stockholders equity as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income.
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In assessing effectiveness, the Company uses the spot rate method of accounting to value foreign currency exchange
rate changes in both its foreign subsidiaries and the derivative designated as a hedge of a net investment. If the
notional amount of the derivative designated as a hedge of a net investment is greater than the portion of the net
investment being hedged, hedge ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in earnings. Changes in the fair value of
the hedging instrument are recorded in stockholders equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income until the sale or liquidation of the hedged net investment.

Interest Rate Risk Management

During the first six months of Fiscal 2007, the Company entered into three forward-starting interest rate swap
contracts in anticipation of the Company s proposed refinancing of the 1999 Euro Debt, which was completed in
October 2006. These contracts were designated as cash flow hedges of a forecasted transaction to issue new debt in
connection with the planned refinancing. The interest rate swaps hedged a total of 200.0 million, a portion of the
underlying interest rate exposure on the anticipated refinancing. Under the terms of the swaps, the Company paid a
weighted-average fixed rate of interest of 4.1% and received variable interest based on six-month EURIBOR. The
Company terminated the swaps on September 28, 2006, which was the date the interest rate for the Euro Debt was
determined. As a result, the Company made a payment of approximately 3.5 million ($4.4 million) in settlement of the
swaps. An amount of $0.2 million was recognized as a loss in Fiscal 2007 due to the partial ineffectiveness of the cash
flow hedge as a result of the forecasted transaction closing on October 5, 2006 instead of November 22, 2006 (the
maturity date of the 1999 Euro Debt). The remaining loss of $4.2 million was deferred as a component of
comprehensive income within stockholders equity and is being recognized in earnings as an adjustment to interest
expense over the seven-year term of the Euro Debt.

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company operates its retail stores under various leasing arrangements. The Company also occupies various office
and warehouse facilities and uses certain equipment under numerous lease agreements. Such leasing arrangements are

accounted for under the provisions of FAS 13 as either operating leases or capital leases. In this context, capital leases

include leases whereby the Company is considered to have the substantive risks of ownership during construction of a

leased property pursuant to the provisions of EITF 97-10. Information on the Company s operating and capital leasing
activities is set forth below.

Operating Leases

The Company is typically required to make minimum rental payments, and often contingent rental payments, under its
operating leases. Substantially all factory and full-price retail store leases provide for contingent rentals based upon
sales, and certain rental agreements require payment based solely on a percentage of sales. Terms of the Company s
leases generally contain renewal options, rent escalation clauses and landlord incentives. Rent expense, net of sublease
income which was not significant, was approximately $237 million in Fiscal 2009, $208 million in Fiscal 2008 and
$172 million in Fiscal 2007. Such amounts include contingent rental charges of approximately $16 million for Fiscal
2009, $14 million for Fiscal 2008 and $12 million for Fiscal 2007. In addition to such amounts, the Company is
normally required to pay taxes, insurance and occupancy costs relating to the leased real estate properties.
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As of March 28, 2009, future minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with lease terms in
excess of one year were as follows:

Annual Minimum

Operating Lease
Payments®
(millions)
Fiscal 2010 $ 179.9
Fiscal 2011 167.6
Fiscal 2012 159.2
Fiscal 2013 151.9
Fiscal 2014 143.0
Fiscal 2015 and thereafter 831.0
Total $ 1,632.6

@  Net of sublease income, which is not significant in any period.

Capital Leases

Assets under capital leases amounted to approximately $38 million at the end of both Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008.
Such assets are classified within property and equipment in the consolidated balance sheets. As of March 28, 2009,

future minimum rental payments under noncancelable capital leases with lease terms in excess of one year were as
follows:

Annual Minimum

Capital Lease
Payments®
(millions)
Fiscal 2010 $ 8.3
Fiscal 2011 9.1
Fiscal 2012 9.0
Fiscal 2013 9.0
Fiscal 2014 9.0
Fiscal 2015 and thereafter 47.3
Total $ 91.7
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@  Net of sublease income, which is not significant in any period.
Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with certain executives in the normal course of business which provide for
compensation and certain other benefits. These agreements also provide for severance payments under certain
circumstances.

Other Commitments

Other off-balance sheet firm commitments, which include inventory purchase commitments, outstanding letters of
credit and minimum funding commitments to investees, amounted to approximately $600 million as of March 28,
2009. In addition, as discussed in Note 5, the Company has entered into an agreement to assume direct control of its

Polo-branded licensed apparel business in Southeast Asia effective January 1, 2010 in exchange for a
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cash payment of $20 million and certain other consideration. The transaction is subject to certain customary closing
conditions.

Litigation
California Class Action Litigation

On October 11, 2007 and November 2, 2007, two class action lawsuits were filed by two customers in state court in
California asserting that while they were shopping at certain of the Company s factory stores in California, the
Company allegedly required them to provide certain personal information at the point-of-sale in order to complete a
credit card purchase. The plaintiffs purported to represent a class of customers in California who allegedly were
injured by being forced to provide their address and telephone numbers in order to use their credit cards to purchase
items from the Company s stores, which allegedly violated Section 1747.08 of California s Song-Beverly Act. The
complaints sought an unspecified amount of statutory penalties, attorneys fees and injunctive relief. The Company
subsequently had the actions moved to the United States District Court for the Eastern and Central Districts of
California. The Company commenced mediation proceedings with respect to these lawsuits and on October 17, 2008,
the Company agreed in principle to settle these claims by agreeing to issue $20 merchandise discount coupons with
six month expiration dates to eligible parties and paying the plaintiffs attorneys fees. The terms of the final settlement
remain subject to court approval. In connection with this settlement, the Company recorded a $5 million reserve
against its expected loss exposure during the second quarter of Fiscal 2009.

Wathne Imports Litigation

On August 19, 2005, Wathne Imports, Ltd. ( Wathne ), our domestic licensee for luggage and handbags, filed a
complaint in the U.S. District Court in the Southern District of New York against us and Ralph Lauren, our Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, asserting, among other things, federal trademark law violations, breach of contract,
breach of obligations of good faith and fair dealing, fraud and negligent misrepresentation. The complaint sought,
among other relief, injunctive relief, compensatory damages in excess of $250 million and punitive damages of not
less than $750 million. On September 13, 2005, Wathne withdrew this complaint from the U.S. District Court and

filed a complaint in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, New York County, making substantially the same
allegations and claims (excluding the federal trademark claims), and seeking similar relief. On February 1, 2006, the
court granted our motion to dismiss all of the causes of action, including the cause of action against Mr. Lauren,

except for the breach of contract claims, and denied Wathne s motion for a preliminary injunction. We believe this
lawsuit to be without merit, and moved for summary judgment on the remaining claims. Wathne cross-moved for
partial summary judgment. A hearing on these motions occurred on November 1, 2007. The judge presiding in this
case provided a written ruling on the summary judgment motion on April 11, 2008. The Court granted Polo s summary
judgment motion to dismiss in large measure, and denied Wathne s cross-motion. Wathne appealed the dismissal of its
claims and a hearing in connection with this appeal was held before the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court on
May 19, 2009. A ruling from the Appellate Division with respect to this appeal is not expected for several months. A
trial date has not yet been established in connection with this matter. We intend to continue to contest the remaining
claims in this lawsuit vigorously. Accordingly, management does not expect that the ultimate resolution of this matter
will have a material adverse effect on the Company s liquidity or financial position.

California Labor Law Litigation
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On March 2, 2006, a former employee at our Club Monaco store in Los Angeles, California filed a lawsuit against the
Company in the San Francisco Superior Court alleging violations of California wage and hour laws. The plaintiff
purported to represent a class of Club Monaco store employees who allegedly were injured by being improperly
classified as exempt employees and thereby did not receive compensation for overtime and did not receive meal and
rest breaks. The complaint sought an unspecified amount of compensatory damages,
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disgorgement of profits, attorneys fees and injunctive relief. On August 21, 2007, eleven former and then current
employees of the Company s Club Monaco stores in California filed a lawsuit in Los Angeles Superior Court alleging
similar claims as the Club Monaco action in San Francisco. The complaint sought an unspecified amount of
compensatory damages, attorneys fees and punitive damages. The parties to these two Club Monaco litigations agreed
to retain a mediator in an effort to resolve both matters and agreed to settle all claims involving both litigations at an
aggregate cost of $1.2 million. The terms of the settlement were recently approved by both the Los Angeles and

San Francisco courts.

On May 30, 2006, four former employees of our Ralph Lauren stores in Palo Alto and San Francisco, California filed

a lawsuit in the San Francisco Superior Court alleging violations of California wage and hour laws. The plaintiffs
purport to represent a class of employees who allegedly have been injured by not properly being paid commission
earnings, not being paid overtime, not receiving rest breaks, being forced to work off of the clock while waiting to
enter or leave the store and being falsely imprisoned while waiting to leave the store. The complaint seeks an
unspecified amount of compensatory damages, damages for emotional distress, disgorgement of profits, punitive
damages, attorneys fees and injunctive and declaratory relief. We have filed a cross-claim against one of the plaintiffs
for his role in allegedly assisting a former employee to misappropriate Company property. Subsequent to answering
the complaint, we had the action moved to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. On
July 8, 2008, the United States District Court for the Northern District of California granted plaintiffs motion for class
certification. We believe this suit is without merit and intend to contest it vigorously. Accordingly, management does
not expect that the ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on the Company s liquidity or
financial position.

Club Monaco International Licensing Litigation

On May 15, 2009, the Company s subsidiary, Club Monaco Corp., commenced an action in the Supreme Court of the
State of New York, New York County, against LCJG Distribution Co., Ltd. ( LCJG ) and Lane Crawford Joyce Group
Limited ( Lane Crawford ). LCJG is a Club Monaco Corp. licensee in Asia pursuant to a Club Monaco Store License
Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2005 (as amended, the License Agreement ). Lane Crawford is the guarantor of
LCJG s obligations under the License Agreement, pursuant to a Guaranty, dated as of February 28, 2005, which was
executed by Lane Crawford (the Guaranty ). The License Agreement requires that LCJG pay royalties and other
payments to Club Monaco Corp. for the use by LCJG of the Club Monaco brand in connection with the operation of
various Club Monaco stores in Asia. Club Monaco Corp. s Complaint alleges that LCJG and Lane Crawford have
breached the License Agreement and Guaranty by, among other things, failing to pay Club Monaco certain royalties
and other payments which both LCJG and Lane Crawford are responsible for under the License Agreement and
Guaranty. Management does not expect that the ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect
on the Company s liquidity, financial position or results of operations.

Credit Card Matter

In the third quarter of Fiscal 2007, the Company was notified of an alleged compromise of its retail store information
systems that process its credit card data for certain Club Monaco stores in Canada. As of the end of Fiscal 2007, the
Company had recorded a total reserve of $5.0 million for this matter based on its best estimate of its potential
exposure at that time. In October 2008, the Company was notified that this matter had been fully resolved. The
Company s aggregate losses in this matter were less than $0.4 million. The Company reversed $4.1 million of its
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original $5.0 million reserve into income during Fiscal 2008 based on favorable developments in this matter at that
point, and the remaining $0.5 million excess reserve was reversed into income during the second quarter of Fiscal
2009.
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Other Matters

We are otherwise involved from time to time in legal claims and proceedings involving credit card fraud, trademark
and intellectual property, licensing, employee relations and other matters incidental to our business. We believe that
the resolution of these other matters currently pending will not individually or in the aggregate have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

17. Stockholders Equity
Capital Stock

The Company s capital stock consists of two classes of common stock. There are 500 million shares of Class A
common stock and 100 million shares of Class B common stock authorized to be issued. Shares of Class A and

Class B common stock have substantially identical rights, except with respect to voting rights. Holders of Class A
common stock are entitled to one vote per share and holders of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per
share. Holders of both classes of stock vote together as a single class on all matters presented to the stockholders for
their approval, except with respect to the election and removal of directors or as otherwise required by applicable law.
All outstanding shares of Class B common stock are owned by Mr. Ralph Lauren, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, and related entities.

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In May 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved an expansion of the Company s existing common stock
repurchase program that allows the Company to repurchase up to an additional $250 million of Class A common
stock. Repurchases of shares of Class A common stock are subject to overall business and market conditions. In Fiscal
2009, 1.8 million shares of Class A common stock were repurchased by the Company at a cost of $126.2 million
under its repurchase program. Also, during the first quarter of Fiscal 2009, 0.4 million shares traded prior to the end of
Fiscal 2008 were settled at a cost of $24.0 million. The remaining availability under the common stock repurchase
program was approximately $266 million as of March 28, 2009.

In addition, in Fiscal 2009, 0.3 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $19.6 million were surrendered to,
or withheld by, the Company in satisfaction of withholding taxes in connection with the vesting of awards under the
Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.

In Fiscal 2008, share repurchases amounted to 6.1 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $476.4 million,
including $24.0 million (0.4 million shares) that was traded prior to the end of the fiscal year for which settlement
occurred in April 2008. In addition, in Fiscal 2008, 0.3 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of

$23.0 million were surrendered to, or withheld by, the Company in satisfaction of withholding taxes in connection
with the vesting of awards under the Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.

In Fiscal 2007, the Company repurchased 3.5 million shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $231.3 million.

Dividends
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Since 2003, the Company has maintained a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share, or $0.20 per share on
an annual basis, on its common stock. Dividends paid amounted to $19.9 million in Fiscal 2009, $20.5 million in
Fiscal 2008 and $20.9 million in Fiscal 2007.

F-41

Table of Contents 149



Edgar Filing: CUTERA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following summary sets forth the components of other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, accumulated in
stockholders equity:

Net
Net Net
Foreign Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Total
Gains Gains
Currency (Losses) (Losses) Gains Accumulated
on
Translation on Derivative Available- (Losses) on Other
Gains Financial for-Sale Defined  Comprehensive
Benefit Income
(Losses) Instruments® Investments Plans (Loss)
(millions)

Balance at April 1, 2006 $ 610 $ (45.5) $ $ $ 15.5
Fiscal 2007 pretax activity(® 53.1 (34.3) 18.3
Fiscal 2007 tax benefit (provision)®) 1.2 55 6.7
Balance at March 31, 2007 115.3 (74.8) 40.5
Fiscal 2008 pretax activity(® 144.7 (90.8) (0.4) (0.2) 53.3
Fiscal 2008 tax benefit (provision)(© (8.9) 27.5 0.2 18.8
Balance at March 29, 2008 251.1 (138.1) 0.2) (0.2) 112.6
Fiscal 2009 pretax activity(@ (75.5) 112.1 0.4 (0.6) 36.4
Fiscal 2009 tax benefit (provision)@ 5.8 (28.0) 0.1 0.1 (22.2)
Balance at March 28, 2009 $ 1814 $ 54.0) $ 01 $ 07 $ 126.8

@  Includes deferred gains and losses on hedging instruments, such as foreign currency exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges and changes in the fair value of the Company s Euro-denominated debt designated
as a hedge of changes in the fair value of the Company s net investment in certain of its European subsidiaries.

(b)  Includes a net reclassification adjustment of $3.1 million (net of $0.5 million tax effect) for realized derivative
financial instrument gains in the current period that were included as an unrealized gain in comprehensive income

in a prior period.

© Includes a net reclassification adjustment of $6.6 million (net of $1.2 million tax effect) for realized derivative
financial instrument losses in the current period that were included as an unrealized loss in comprehensive income
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in a prior period.

@ TIncludes a net reclassification adjustment of $20.3 million (net of $1.1 million tax effect) for realized derivative
financial instrument losses in the current period that were included as an unrealized loss in comprehensive income
in a prior period.

19. Stock-Based Compensation
Long-term Stock Incentive Plan

The Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the 1997 Plan ), authorizes the grant
of awards to participants with respect to a maximum of 26.0 million shares of the Company s Class A common stock;
however, there are limits as to the number of shares available for certain awards and to any one participant. Equity
awards that may be made under the 1997 Plan include (a) stock options, (b) restricted stock and (c) restricted stock

units ( RSUs ). The Company also granted awards under the 1997 Non-Employee Director Option Plan prior to that
plan s expiration on December 31, 2006. No future awards will be made under the 1997 Non-Employee Director

Option Plan.
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Impact on Results

A summary of the total compensation expense and associated income tax benefits recognized related to stock-based
compensation arrangements is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Compensation expense $ (49.7) $ (70.7) $ (43.6)
Income tax benefit $ 185 $ 20.2 $ 175

Stock Options

Stock options are granted to employees and non-employee directors with exercise prices equal to fair market value at
the date of grant. Generally, the options become exercisable ratably (a graded-vesting schedule), over a three-year
vesting period. Stock options generally expire seven years from the date of grant. The Company recognizes
compensation expense for share-based awards that have graded vesting and no performance conditions on an
accelerated basis. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock
options granted, which requires the input of both subjective and objective assumptions as follows:

Expected Term  The estimate of expected term is based on the historical exercise behavior of employees and
non-employee directors, as well as the contractual life of the option grants.

Expected Volatility The expected volatility factor is based on the historical volatility of the Company s common stock
for a period equal to the stock option s expected term.

Expected Dividend Yield The expected dividend yield is based on the regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per
share.

Risk-free Interest Rate The risk-free interest rate is determined using the implied yield for a traded zero-coupon
U.S. Treasury bond with a term equal to the option s expected term.

The Company s weighted-average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted during the fiscal
years presented were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
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Expected term (years) 4.3 4.8 4.5

Expected volatility 32.1% 29.9% 33.2%

Expected dividend yield 0.29% 0.26% 0.39%

Risk-free interest rate 3.0% 4.6% 4.9%

Weighted-average option grant date fair value $17.27 $32.65 $19.40
F-43
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A summary of the stock option activity under all plans during Fiscal 2009 is as follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value®
(thousands) (years) (millions)
Options outstanding at March 29, 2008 6,011 $ 39.93 5.3 $ 132.8
Granted 861 57.52
Exercised (1,048) 27.64
Cancelled/Forfeited (126) 66.84
Options outstanding at March 28, 2009 5,698 $ 44.22 4.8 $ 50.0
Options vested and expected to vest at
March 28, 2009®) 5,611 $ 43.97 4.8 $ 50.0
Options exercisable at March 28, 2009 4,246 $ 36.22 4.4 $ 499

@  The intrinsic value is the amount by which the market price at the end of the period of the underlying share of
stock exceeds the exercise price of the stock option.

(b) " The number of options expected to vest takes into consideration estimated expected forfeitures.

Additional information pertaining to the Company s stock option plans is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised® $ 332 $ 67.0 $ 88.7
Cash received from the exercise of stock options 29.0 40.1 514
Tax benefits realized on exercise 12.1 344 33.2

@  The intrinsic value is the amount by which the average market price during the period exceeded the exercise price
of the stock option exercised.
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As of March 28, 2009, there was $11.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested stock
options granted, expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

Restricted Stock and RSUs

The Company grants restricted shares of Class A common stock and service-based RSUs to certain of its senior
executives and non-employee directors. In addition, the Company grants performance-based RSUs to such senior
executives and other key executives, and certain other employees of the Company.

Restricted shares of Class A common stock, which entitle the holder to receive a specified number of shares of

Class A common stock at the end of a vesting period, are accounted for at fair value at the date of grant. In addition,
holders of restricted shares are entitled to receive cash dividends in connection with the payments of dividends on the
Company s Class A common stock. Generally, restricted stock grants vest over a five-year period of time, subject to
the executive s continuing employment. Restricted stock shares granted to non-employee directors vest over a
three-year period of time.

RSUs entitle the grantee to receive shares of Class A common stock at the end of a vesting period. Service-based
RSUs are payable in shares of Class A common stock and generally vest over a five-year period of time, subject to the
executive s continuing employment. Performance-based RSUs also are payable in shares of Class A common stock
and generally vest (a) upon the completion of a three-year period of time (cliff vesting), subject to the
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employee s continuing employment and the Company s achievement of certain performance goals over the three-year
period or (b) ratably, over a three-year period of time (graded vesting), subject to the employee s continuing
employment during the applicable vesting period and the achievement by the Company of certain performance goals
either (i) in each year of the vesting period for grants made prior to Fiscal 2008 or (ii) solely in the initial year of the
vesting period for grants made in and after Fiscal 2008. In addition, holders of certain RSUs are entitled to receive
dividend equivalents in the form of additional RSUs in connection with the payment of dividends on the Company s
Class A common stock. RSUs, including shares resulting from dividend equivalents paid on such units, are accounted
for at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value of a restricted security is based on the fair value of unrestricted
Class A common stock, as adjusted to reflect the absence of dividends for those restricted securities that are not
entitled to dividend equivalents. Compensation expense for performance-based RSUs is recognized over the related
service period when attainment of the performance goals is deemed probable.

A summary of the restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity during Fiscal 2009 is as follows:

Restricted Service-based Performance-based
Stock RSUs RSUs

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Number Grant Number Grant Number Grant
of Date of Date of Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
(thousands) (thousands) (thousands)

Nonvested at March 29, 2008 34 % 42.60 667 $ 47.55 1,354  $ 65.41
Granted 7 59.22 178 64.12 533 57.48
Vested 17) 40.86 (186) 29.33 (616) 52.62
Cancelled (D) 68.14 (103) 61.68
Nonvested at March 28, 2009 23 % 47.58 659 $ 57.15 1,168 $ 71.67

Restricted Service-based Performance-based

Stock RSUs RSUs
Total unrecognized compensation at March 28, 2009
(millions) $ 0.5 $10.7 $314
Weighted-average years expected to be recognized over
(years) 0.8 2.5 1.4

Additional information pertaining to the restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity is as follows:
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Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
Restricted Stock
Weighted-average grant date fair value of awards granted $ 59.22 $ 87.85 $
Total fair value of awards vested (millions) 1.1 7.1 4.2
Service-based RSUs
Weighted-average grant date fair value of awards granted $ 64.12 $ 100.56 $ 5543
Total fair value of awards vested (millions) 10.2 4.8
Performance-based RSUs
Weighted-average grant date fair value of awards granted $ 5748 $ 86.98 $ 5517
Total fair value of awards vested (millions) 40.8 434 34
F-45
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20. Employee Benefit Plans
Profit Sharing Retirement Savings Plans

The Company sponsors two defined contribution benefit plans covering substantially all eligible U.S. employees not
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. The plans include a savings plan feature under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company makes discretionary contributions to the plans and contributes an amount equal
to 50% of the first 6% of salary contributed by an employee.

Under the terms of the plans, a participant is 100% vested in Company matching and discretionary contributions after
five years of credited service. Contributions made by the Company under these plans approximated $6 million in both
Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, and $4 million in Fiscal 2007.

Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company has a non-qualified supplemental retirement plan for certain highly compensated employees whose
benefits under the 401(k) profit sharing retirement savings plans are expected to be constrained by the operation of
certain Internal Revenue Code limitations. These supplemental benefits vest over time and the related compensation
expense is recognized over the vesting period.

In August 2008, the Company amended its non-qualified supplemental retirement plan. The amendments included a
suspension of the annual contributions for substantially all plan participants effective for Fiscal 2009. Further, affected
participants were provided with a one-time election to either withdraw all benefits vested in the plan in a lump sum
amount during the first quarter of Fiscal 2010 or remain in the plan and receive future distributions of benefits vested
over a 5-year period.

The amount accrued under this plan was $29 million as of March 28, 2009, comprised of $18 million classified within
accrued expenses and other and $11 million classified within other non-current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets. An amount of $29 million was accrued under this plan as of March 29, 2008 and was classified within other
non-current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. Total compensation expense recognized related to these
benefits was $2 million, $4 million and $3 million in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company has deferred compensation arrangements for certain key executives which generally provide for
payments upon retirement, death or termination of employment. The amounts accrued under these plans were
approximately $2 million as of both March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, and were classified within other non-current
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Total compensation expense related to these compensation arrangements
was $0.3 million in each of the three fiscal years presented. The Company funds a portion of these obligations through
the establishment of trust accounts on behalf of the executives participating in the plans. The trust accounts are
classified within other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Union Pension Plan
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The Company participates in a multi-employer pension plan and is required to make contributions to the UNITE
HERE (which was previously known as the Union of Needletrades, Industrial and Textile Employees, prior to its
merger with the Hotel Employees and Restaurant Employees International Union) ( Union ) for dues based on wages
paid to union employees. A portion of these dues is allocated by the Union to a retirement fund which provides
defined benefits to substantially all unionized workers. The Company does not participate in the management of the
plan and has not been furnished with information with respect to the type of benefits provided, vested and non-vested
benefits or assets.
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Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, an employer, upon withdrawal from or
termination of a multi-employer plan, is required to continue funding its proportionate share of the plan s unfunded
vested benefits. Such withdrawal liability was assumed in conjunction with the acquisition of certain assets from a
non-affiliated licensee. The Company has no current intention of withdrawing from the plan.

International Defined Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors certain single-employer defined benefit plans and participates in a multi-employer defined
benefit plan at international locations, which are not considered to be material individually or in the aggregate.
Pension benefits under these plans are based on formulas that reflect the employees years of service and compensation
levels during their employment period. The aggregate funded status of the single-employer defined benefit plans were
net liabilities of $7.3 million and $6.6 million as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, respectively, primarily
recorded within other non-current liabilities in the Company s consolidated balance sheets. These single-employer
defined benefit plans had aggregate projected benefit obligations of $26.9 million and aggregate fair values of plan
assets of $22.9 million as of March 28, 2009, compared to projected benefit obligations of $21.3 million and fair
values of plan assets of $18.8 million as of March 29, 2008. Pension expense for these plans, recorded within SG&A
expenses in the Company s consolidated statements of operations, was $4.0 million in Fiscal 2009, $3.6 million in
Fiscal 2008 and $2.2 million in Fiscal 2007.

On March 31, 2009, the Company withdrew from the remaining multi-employer defined benefit plan assumed in the
Japanese Business Acquisitions. A related withdrawal liability of approximately $4 million is classified within other
non-current liabilities in the Company s consolidated balance sheets as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008. Total
contributions to the multi-employer plan were $0.6 million and $0.5 million in Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008,
respectively. The Company did not participate in any multi-employer defined benefit plans in Fiscal 2007.

On April 1, 2009, the Company integrated all of its Japanese single-employer defined benefit plans into one defined
contribution and cash balance plan (the Integrated Japan Pension Plan ). The opening balance of the projected benefit
obligation for the Integrated Japan Pension Plan was approximately $6.0 million. As a result of this integration,

certain of the Company s pre-existing Japanese single-employer defined benefit plans were settled. The Company
expects to record a related settlement charge of approximately $0.4 million in the consolidated statement of operations
during the first quarter of Fiscal 2010.

21. Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments based on its business activities and organization: Wholesale, Retail and
Licensing. Such segments offer a variety of products through different channels of distribution. The Wholesale
segment consists of women s, men s and children s apparel, accessories and related products which are sold to major
department stores, specialty stores, golf and pro shops and the Company s owned and licensed retail stores in the

U.S. and overseas. The Retail segment consists of the Company s worldwide retail operations, which sell products
through its full-price and factory stores, as well as RalphLauren.com and Rugby.com, its e-commerce websites. The
stores and websites sell products purchased from the Company s licensees, suppliers and Wholesale segment. The
Licensing segment generates revenues from royalties earned on the sale of the Company s apparel, home and other
products internationally and domestically through licensing alliances. The licensing agreements grant the licensees
rights to use the Company s various trademarks in connection with the manufacture and sale of designated products in
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specified geographical areas for specified periods.

The accounting policies of the Company s segments are consistent with those described in Note 3. Sales and transfers
between segments generally are recorded at cost and treated as transfers of inventory. All intercompany revenues are
eliminated in consolidation and are not reviewed when evaluating segment performance. Each segment s performance
is evaluated based upon operating income before restructuring charges and certain other one-time items, such as legal
charges, if any. Corporate overhead expenses (exclusive of certain expenses for senior
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management, overall branding-related expenses and certain other corporate-related expenses) are allocated to the
segments based upon specific usage or other allocation methods.

Net revenues and operating income for each segment are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Net revenues:
Wholesale $ 2.,887.2 $ 2,758.1 $ 2,3159
Retail 1,936.5 1,912.6 1,743.2
Licensing 195.2 209.4 236.3
Total net revenues $ 5,018.9 $ 4,880.1 $ 42954
Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Operating income:
Wholesale® $ 6133 $ 5654 $ 4778
Retail®@ 108.2 204.2 224.2
Licensing 103.6 96.7 141.6
825.1 866.3 843.6

Less:
Unallocated corporate expenses(® (206.5) (217.0) (183.4)
Unallocated legal and restructuring charges®) (23.1) 4.1 (7.6)
Total operating income $ 5955 $ 6534 $ 6526

@  Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 included certain asset impairment charges. Fiscal 2009 included asset impairment
charges of $55.4 million, of which $52.0 million related to the write-down of certain Retail store assets, and
$2.8 million in the Wholesale segment and $0.6 million in the Corporate office related to the write-down of
certain capitalized software costs. Fiscal 2008 included asset impairment charges of $5.0 million related to the
write-down of certain Retail store assets (see Note 11 for further discussion).
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() Fiscal 2009 included certain unallocated restructuring charges and legal-related activity. Restructuring charges for
Fiscal 2009 consisted of $23.6 million, of which $12.7 million related to the Retail segment, $7.3 million related
to the Wholesale segment and $3.6 million related to Corporate operations. Fiscal 2007 restructuring charges of
$4.6 million primarily related to the Retail segment (see Note 12 for further discussion). Legal-related activity
related to the Company s Credit Card Matter (see Note 16 for further discussion) and consisted of the reversal of
excess reserves in the amounts of $0.5 million for Fiscal 2009 and $4.1 million for Fiscal 2008, as well as legal
charges of $3.0 million for Fiscal 2007 .
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Depreciation and amortization expense and capital expenditures for each segment are as follows:

Depreciation and amortization:
Wholesale

Retail

Licensing

Unallocated corporate expenses

Total depreciation and amortization

Capital expenditures:
Wholesale

Retail

Licensing

Corporate

Total capital expenditures

Total assets for each segment are as follows:

Total assets:
Wholesale
Retail

Table of Contents

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

$ 555 $ 63.9 $ 47.0

80.7 73.4 59.0
24 19.7 44
45.8 443 343

$ 1844 $ 201.3 $ 144.7

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28,  March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)

$ 355 $ 46.0 $ 44.6

110.8 116.1 83.1
1.1 24 3.0
37.6 52.6 533

$ 185.0 $ 217.1 $ 184.0

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)

$ 2,731.5 $ 24342
968.8 1,084.9
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Licensing 207.9 216.4

Corporate 448.3 630.0

Total assets $ 4,356.5 $ 43655
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Net revenues and long-lived assets by geographic location of the reporting subsidiary are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Net revenues:
United States and Canada $ 3,589.3 $ 3,653.1 $ 3,452.2
Europe 1,028.4 944.7 767.9
Japan 392.6 272.4 64.6
Other regions 8.6 9.9 10.7
Total net revenues $ 5,018.9 $ 4,880.1 $ 42954
Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29,
2009 2008
(millions)
Long-lived assets:
United States and Canada $ 4528 $ 517.1
Europe 132.7 131.1
Japan 60.9 57.3
Other regions 5.2 4.4
Total long-lived assets $ 651.6 $ 709.9

22. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of conducting its business, the Company periodically enters into transactions with other entities
or people that are considered related parties.

In connection with the launch of the RL Watch Company business, the Company will begin to receive royalty
payments pursuant to a related licensing agreement that allows the RL Watch Company to sell luxury watches and
fine jewelry throughout the world using certain of the Company s trademarks. The Company has a 50% interest in the
RL Watch Company, which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. See Note 3 for further discussion
of the Company s investment in the RL Watch Company.
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Prior to the Japanese Business Acquisitions that occurred in May 2007, the Company received royalty payments
pursuant to a licensing agreement with Impact 21 that allowed Impact 21 to sell high quality apparel and related
merchandise in Japan using certain of the Company s trademarks. The Company had an approximately 20% interest in
Impact 21, which was accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Royalty payments received under this
arrangement were approximately $34 million in Fiscal 2007. See Note 5 for further discussion of the Company s
Japanese Business Acquisitions.

In addition, Mr. Ralph Lauren, the Company s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, sometimes used the services of
certain employees of the Company for non-Company related purposes in Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007. Mr. Lauren
reimbursed the Company for the direct expenses incurred in connection with those services, including an allocation of
such employees salaries and benefits. Such aggregate costs and related reimbursements were less than $1 million in
both Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007. No related services were provided by the Company to Mr. Lauren in Fiscal 2009.
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23. Additional Financial Information

Cash Interest and Taxes

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(millions)
Cash paid for interest $ 25.1 $ 229 $ 209
Cash paid for income taxes $ 165.0 $ 248.8 $ 244.6

Non-cash Transactions

Significant non-cash investing activities included the capitalization of fixed assets and recognition of related
obligations in the net amount of $13.0 million for Fiscal 2009 and $39.8 million for Fiscal 2008. Significant non-cash
investing activities also included the non-cash allocation of the fair value of the net assets acquired in connection with
the Japanese Childrenswear and Golf Acquisition in Fiscal 2009, the Japanese Business Acquisitions and the Small
Leathergoods Business Acquisition in Fiscal 2008, and the RL. Media Minority Interest Acquisition in Fiscal 2007.
See Note 5 for further discussion of the Company s acquisitions.

Significant non-cash financing activities included the repurchase of 0.4 million shares of Class A common stock at a
cost of $24.0 million that was traded prior to the end of Fiscal 2008 for which settlement occurred in April 2008. In
addition, as a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Company recognized a non-cash reduction in retained earnings of
$62.5 million as the cumulative effect to adjust its net liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of April 1, 2007.

There were no other significant non-cash investing or financing activities for the three fiscal years presented.
Licensing-related Transactions

Eyewear Licensing Agreement

In February 2006, the Company announced that it had entered into a ten-year exclusive licensing agreement with
Luxottica Group, S.p.A. and affiliates for the design, production, sale and distribution of prescription frames and
sunglasses under the Polo Ralph Lauren brand (the Eyewear Licensing Agreement ).

The Eyewear Licensing Agreement took effect on January 1, 2007 after the Company s pre-existing licensing
agreement with another licensee expired. In early January, the Company received a prepayment of approximately
$180 million, net of certain tax withholdings, in consideration of the annual minimum royalty and design-services fees

to be earned over the life of the contract. The prepayment is non-refundable, except with respect to certain breaches of
the agreement by the Company, in which case only the unearned portion of the prepayment as determined based on
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the specific terms of the agreement would be required to be repaid. The prepayment was recorded by the Company as
deferred income and is being recognized in earnings as earned in accordance with the terms of the agreement based
upon the higher of (a) contractually guaranteed minimum royalty levels or (b) estimates of sales and royalty data
received from the licensee.

Underwear Licensing Agreement

The Company licensed the right to manufacture and sell Chaps-branded underwear under a long-term license
agreement, which was scheduled to expire in December 2009. During Fiscal 2007, the Company and the licensee
agreed to terminate the licensing and related design-services agreements. In connection with this agreement, the
Company received a portion of the minimum royalty and design-service fees due to it under the underlying
agreements on an accelerated basis. The approximate $8 million of proceeds received by the Company has been
recognized as licensing revenue in the consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2007.
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MANAGEMENT S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation is responsible for the preparation, objectivity and integrity of the
consolidated financial statements and other information contained in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
include some amounts that are based on management s informed judgments and best estimates.

These consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP in Fiscal 2009 and by Deloitte &
Touche LLP in Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, both of which are independent registered public accounting firms. They
conducted their audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) and have expressed herein their unqualified opinions on those financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which oversees all of the Company s financial reporting process on
behalf of the Board of Directors, consists solely of independent directors, meets with the independent registered
accountants, internal auditors and management periodically to review their respective activities and the discharge of
their respective responsibilities. Both the independent registered public accountants and the internal auditors have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, with or without management, to discuss the scope and results of their
audits and any recommendations regarding the system of internal controls.

May 26, 2009
/S/ RALPH LAUREN /S/ TRACEY T. TRAVIS
Ralph Lauren Tracey T. Travis
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and subsidiaries

(the Company ) as of March 28, 2009, and the related consolidated statement of operations, stockholders equity, and
cash flows for the fiscal year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company at March 28, 2009, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows
for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of March 28, 2009, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated May 26, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
May 26, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and subsidiaries

(the Company ) as of March 29, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and
cash flows for each of the two fiscal years in the period ended March 29, 2008. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of March 29, 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two fiscal years
in the period ended March 29, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the notes to consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes , effective April 1, 2007. Also, as
discussed in Note 4 to the notes to consolidated financial statements, the Company elected application of Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements
in Current Year Financial Statements , effective April 2, 2006.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
May 28, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation

We have audited Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company s ) internal control over financial
reporting as of March 28, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria ). The Company s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management s Report of
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of March 28, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of March 28, 2009, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, stockholders equity, and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended and our report dated May 26, 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
May 26, 2009
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth selected historical financial information as of the dates and for the periods indicated.

The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 28, 2009 as
well as the consolidated balance sheet data as of March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008 have been derived from, and
should be read in conjunction with, the audited financial statements and other financial information presented
elsewhere herein. The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the two fiscal years in the period ended
April 1, 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet data at March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005 have been
derived from audited financial statements not included herein. Capitalized terms are as defined and described in the
consolidated financial statements or elsewhere herein. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the

results to be expected in any future period.

The selected financial information for the fiscal year ended March 28, 2009 reflects the Japanese Childrenswear and
Golf Acquisition effective in August 2008. The selected financial information for the fiscal year ended March 29,
2008 reflects the acquisition of the Small Leathergoods Business effective in April 2007, the Japanese Business
Acquisitions effective in May 2007, and the adoption of FIN 48. The selected financial information for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2007 reflects the acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest of RL Media effective in March
2007 and the adoption of FAS 123R. The selected financial information for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006 reflects
the acquisition of the formerly-licensed Polo Jeans business effective in February 2006 and the acquisition of the
formerly-licensed footwear business effective in July 2005. The selected financial information for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 2005 reflects the acquisition of the formerly-licensed childrenswear business effective in July 2004.

Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues:

Net sales

Licensing revenues

Net revenues

Gross profit

Depreciation and amortization expense
Impairments of assets
Restructuring charges
Operating income(®)

Interest income/(expense), net
Net income

Net income per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Average common shares:
Basic

Table of Contents

March 28,
2009

$ 4,823.7
195.2

5,018.9
2,730.7
(184.4)
(55.4)
(23.6)
595.5
(4.6)

$ 406.0

4.09
4.01

&+ &L

99.2

Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007

April 1,
2006

(millions, except per share data)

$ 4,670.7
209.4

4,880.1

2,638.1
(201.3)
(5.0)

653.4
(1.0)
$ 4198

4.10
3.99

&L &L

102.3

$ 4,059.1
236.3

4,295.4
2,336.2
(144.7)

(4.6)
652.6
4.5
$ 4009

$ 3.84
$ 3.73

104.4

$ 3,501.1
245.2

3,746.3
2,022.4
(127.0)
(10.8)
9.0)

516.6

1.2

$ 308.0

2.96
2.87

&L L

104.2

April 2,
2005

$ 3,060.7
2447

3,305.4
1,684.5
(102.1)
(1.5)
(2.3)

299.7
(6.4)

$ 1904

$ 1.88
$ 1.83

101.5
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Diluted 101.3 105.2 107.6 107.2 104.1
Dividends declared per common share $ 020 $ 020 $ 020 $ 020 $ 0.0

@  Operating income included reversals of excess reserves related to credit card matters in the amounts of
$0.5 million in Fiscal 2009 and approximately $4 million in Fiscal 2008; and litigation and credit card
contingency-related charges of approximately $3 million in Fiscal 2007, $7 million in Fiscal 2006 and
$106 million in Fiscal 2005.
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Fiscal Years Ended
March 28, March 29, March 31, April 1, April 2,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(millions)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4812 $ 5515 $ 5639 $ 2857 $ 3505
Short-term investments 338.7 74.3
Working capital 1,382.6 984.9 1,045.6 535.0 791.4
Total assets 4,356.5 4,365.5 3,758.0 3,088.7 2,726.7
Total debt (including current maturities of
debt) 406.4 679.2 398.8 280.4 291.0
Stockholders equity 2,735.1 2,389.7 2,334.9 2,049.6 1,675.7
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POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth the quarterly financial information of the Company:

Fiscal 2009

Net revenues

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common share:(®)
Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

Fiscal 2008

Net revenues

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common share:(®)
Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

June 28,

$

“@LH PH P

2008

1,113.6
638.4
95.2

0.96
0.93
0.05

June 30,

$

&L L P

2007

1,070.3
592.0
88.3

0.85
0.82
0.05

September 27,
2008
(millions, except per share data)

$

&L L L

September 29,
2007
(millions, except per share data)

$

&5 L L

1,428.9
788.2
161.0

1.62
1.58
0.05

1,299.1
695.2
115.3

1.12
1.09
0.05

$

&L PH P

$

Quarterly Periods Ended
December 27,
2008

1,252.0
669.7
105.3

1.07
1.05
0.05

Quarterly Periods Ended
December 29,
2007

1,269.8
676.5
112.7

1.11
1.08
0.05

March 28,

$

&5 L LH

2009@

1,224.4
634.4
44.5

0.45
0.44
0.05

March 29,

&5 L LA

2008

1,240.9
674.4
103.5

1.03
1.00
0.05

@  Net income and net income per common share for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2009 have been affected by
approximately $69 million of pretax charges related to asset impairments and restructurings.

(b)  Per common share amounts for the quarters and full years have been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly
amounts may not add to the annual amount because of differences in the average common shares outstanding

during each period.
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